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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC BOARD 2016 

Office Bearers for 2016 - were: 

President                                          Bob Dwyer 

Secretary                                          Douglas Eggins 

Treasurer                                           Ian Bonnette 

Elected Members                              Stuart Brown 

      Richard Carmont (appointed 20.4.16) 

      Adam Freier 

      Glen Joseph 

      Ian Kellaway (appointed 20.4.16) 

      Brian O’Sullivan (appointed 20.4.16) 

      Simon Poidevin 

      John Tuxworth 

Life Members Representative                    Peter Court                          

Director of Rugby                                   Nick Ryan 

Honorary Lawyer                                      James Glissan QC  

Patron                                              Jeffrey Sayle 

 

Attendance at Management Meetings: Since the election on 25 November 2015 the Randwick District 

Rugby union Football Club inc Board has met 9 times up to 30 September 2016. Attendances to that date 

are: 

Bob Dwyer 7, Douglas Eggins 9, Ian Bonnette 9, Stuart Brown 6, Richard Carmont 1, Adam Freier 3, Glen 

Joseph 4, Ian Kellaway 6, Brian O’Sullivan 6, Simon Poidevin 9, John Tuxworth 7, Nick Ryan 8, Peter Court 

9, Jeffrey Sayle 9, James Glissan nil.  

Other officials: 

Administration     Travis Partridge 

Club Captain     Patrick Hodgetts 

Club Trainer                            Michael Stephens 

Honorary Timekeeper             Mick Lewis 

Honorary Statistician            Ray Jennings 

Honorary Historian 

and Archivist                         Bob Outterside 
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Honorary Ball Boy Captain     Dan Dowe 

Ball Boys/Girls Sebastian Elizondo, Sean Foley, Jack Garratt, Georgie Kiernan, Hugo 

Kulcsar, Hunter Makamaka, Boston Neville Tamihana Nau, Edward 

Sullivan, Angus Sullivan, Thomas Walker, Chiara Winn 

 

Medical Officer   Dr Paul Raftos  

 

Physiotherapist   Di Long 

Auditor     Ken Wright 

Annual Report Committee  Doug Eggins, Ray Jennings, Clarissa Luxford, Bob Outterside 

 

 

 

Club Legends John Weber and Jeffrey Sayle 
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Season 2016 showed another step forward for our Club toward our goal to return to the position of ‘top rugby 

club in Australia’. Some may question this claim, given that we played in only two grand final matches this year, 

compared with four in season 2015. But … this season we won two from two; last season we lost all four.  

We aim to be the best of the best, and that means winning premierships.  

We aim for other achievements also - maybe we’ll never be completely satisfied and this, indeed, could be our 

fate.  

We aim for quality of play, predominately with the ball in hand.  

We aim to be tough, accurate and relentless. 

We want the most representative players and coaches. 

We want a lot. 

Season 2016 took us further along this path and we continue to get closer to our traditional game – OK critics, I 

know we’re not there yet, but we continue to make progress in the right direction and we will get there.  

So I say  “Well done to all of you in 2016 and I look forward to many more steps along that path in 2017.” 

I congratulate our players who this year have graduated to the Wallabies, the Waratahs, the NSW and Australian 

U20 teams – indeed into all elite level teams. 

I congratulate Morgan Turinui on his appointment to the Melbourne Rebels coaching staff. Painful though it has 

always been for us to lose quality players and coaches to representative roles, this has always been at the very 

forefront of our focus as a Club. And, in reality, we don’t really lose them. Once you become ‘a Randwick man’, 

you are always ‘a Randwick man’. 

Dare I say that this focus has always served us very well and has always provided opportunity for others to step 

up to the task – and others always have. 

As always, I look forward to next season and to the next game. 

Bob Dwyer 

 

 
Bob Dwyer and Will Lafolafo 
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Representative Scene  
 

Randwick continued its outstanding contribution to the Wallabies, Super 15, Provincial Teams and other 

representative teams. We congratulate these players on their achievements in 2016.  

Wallabies  
Kurtley Beale, Matt Giteau, Sekope Kepu, Drew Mitchell 
 
Waratahs  
Kurtley Beale, Matthew Carraro, Ned Hanigan, David Horwitz, Drew Kellaway 
 
NRC 
Country Eagles 
Mark Baldwin, Sam Croke, Andrew Deegan, Sam Figg, Ned Hanigan, David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway, 
Apakuki Ma’afu,  Will Munro, Reece Robinson, Mitch Short 
 
Greater Sydney Rams 
Harrison Goddard, Andrew Tuala 
 
Brisbane City 
Lukhan Tui 
 

Best and Fairest Awards 

First Grade  Sam Croke 

Second Grade  David Vea 

Third Grade  Luke Rowntree 

Fourth Grade  Jerry Morkos 

Colts First Grade Justin Cooper 

Colts Second Grade Elliott Robbins 
Colts Third Grade  Joe Whitelock 
 
Randwick Rugby Trophy for Best and Fairest Player in the Club 
Andrew Deegan 
 
Ron Don Memorial Trophy for Most Improved Player in the Club  
Lachlan Anderson 
 
Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy for Best Club Man in Fourth Grade  
Luke Roughton 
 
Best Clubman of the Year  
Adam Freier 
 
Rookie of the year  
Harrison Goddard 
 
Aiden Wilson Memorial Colts Clubman of the Year 
Will Anderson 
 
Colts Player of the Year  
Justin Cooper 
 
 
Laurie Augue Memorial Trophy for the Grade team that scores the most number of tries in a 
Season:  
Second Grade – 92 tries 
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The WT (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy  
The Recipient shall be a player acknowledged by his team-mates for his commitment to fitness, willingness to 
learn, loyalty to his fellows and to his Club and dedication to mastering the fundamentals of the Randwick Brand 
of Rugby - 2016 Recipient: Jock Armstrong 
 
CJ Windon Trophy for best back rower in the Club  
Mark Baldwin 
 
CH Towers Trophy for season's leading try scorer  
Chris Taripo – 9 
 
Club’s most valuable player  
Ned Hanigan 
 
Best new player in the Club  
Sonny Satuala 
 
Coach's best all-rounder on and off the Field  
Tristan Goodbody 
 

Sponsors  
 
Without the generosity and support of our Club sponsors we would struggle to survive from year to year; 

our sincere appreciation and gratitude to all of our Club sponsors below.  

Peter's of Kensington  Peter Satouris 
The University of NSW Neil Morris 
Randwick Rugby Foundation  Peter Sweeney 
John Newell Mazda  Mark Conlon 
ADCO    Richard Carmont 
Barefoot Wines  Jess Sharman 
Bell Potter   Simon Poidevin 
Bendigo Bank Clovelly Nicola Powell   
Building Partners  Viv Weatherall 
Cartwright Insurance  Geoff Cartwright 
Coates Hire   Simon Gillies Stuart King 
Coogee Bay Hotel  Chris Cheung 
Eastside Physiotherapy Diane Long 
ExecForce   Ricky Dumigan Grant Doyle 
ESV    Edwina Ring 
Field to Fork   The Horwitz family 
FTI Consulting   Quentin Olde 
Gilbert    Christian Warner 
Girvan Waugh   Michael Girvan and Warwick Waugh 
Helpwise   Peter Needham 
HFIT    Hadley Jackson 
KMB    Ian Kellaway 
Maloney’s Grocers  Jo and Sebastian Matthews 
Moose Kicking Tees  Dave McKay 
Neck Safe Rugby  Dr Adrian Cohen 
Nura Gili UNSW  Michael Peachey 
Paddington Prestige  Peter Robinson 
Sphere    Jack Cockinos 
Victor Sports   David Goodman 
Walsh's Pharmacy  Richard and Phillip Walsh  
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The Randwick Rugby Club is proud to be associated with all sponsors and appreciates them being part of 
the Randwick family. The Club looks forward to seeing all sponsors return in 2017.  
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The Club also expresses its appreciation to:  
 

 Noel D’Souza, Mayor of Randwick City Council, the Councillors, Ray Brownlee, the General 

Manager of Randwick Council and his staff. The Council’s continuing support in relation to Coogee 

Oval, Latham Park and Nagle Park is greatly appreciated.  

 The Coaches and Managers throughout the Season: Shannon Fraser, Morgan Turinui, Brad 

Bishop, Saxon Bowles, Jayson Brewer, Matthew Buckland, Peter Dumbleton, Dave Habler, Hadley 

Jackson, Richard Stanford, Tom Hart, Ian Holder, Martin Kiernan, Mick Lewis, Tom Kellaway, Tim 

Clifford, Peter Meagher, Graham Neville, Travis  Partridge, Joe Picone, Jeffrey Sayle, Mark 

Giacheri, Mick Stephen, Phil Green, Allen Stutchbury, Sam Williamson, Sean Cooney 

 The Club’s medical team under Dr Paul Raftos  

 Headed by Diane Long, the Club’s physiotherapists  Stu Mackay, Greer Brincat, Matt Meoli and 
Phoebe Bowker 

 Dr Adrian Cohen for his selfless commitment with the continuation and follow-up of the Concussion 
Study 

 Club trainers under the direction of Head Trainer Mick Stephens 

 Club rehab Will Leung and Club analyst Declan Oorloff 

 Ground announcer Chris Fraser  

 Coogee Oval Match Day Controller Dan Dowe 

 Match day assistants Doug Eggins, Steve Holten and Bill Vasilis 

 Linesmen Viv Weatherall, Dan Dowe  and Tim Musgrave 

 Clarissa Luxford who prepares the Club’s weekly newsletter and manages the website 

 Photographers Samantha Dennewald, Brett Dooley, David Lyon, Donna McCulloch and Ric McLallen 

 Wicks TV camera and editing crew Donna McCullough and Montanna Clare  

 Dan Dowe, Chris Fraser and Matthew Wheeler for the Thursday night barbeques and refreshments 

 Club Chaplain Dave Rogers of St Luke’s Clovelly  

 Coogee Surf Life-Saving Club for use of facilities and support 

 David Caple, President of Randwick Rugby Juniors and his committee as well as the Presidents of 
the Randwick Junior Clubs  

 To the Club’s loyal supporters that continue to turn up year after year and make Coogee Oval such a 
fantastic place to play rugby.  

 

 

“Interested bystanders” 
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Michael Celona 100 games milestone 
 

Life Members Association Report 

 

Life Members were prominent spectators at both the Grade matches and Colts games during the season, 

particularly at Coogee Oval and had the opportunity of observing the Rugby and the contribution of the 

players. 

The Association acknowledges the achievements of the Club during 2016 in having three Grade sides and 

three Colts sides compete in the major premiership series Reserve Grade and Colts Seconds were 

premiers and are to be congratulated. 

The Club is also worthy of commendation for running third in the Club Championship. 

Association Activities 

During 2016 the Association held meetings on 6 April and 22 September.  The Association is a sub-

committee of the Randwick Rugby Board.  The Association carries out such tasks as the Board may direct 

from time to time. 

A particular role of the Association is to identify and recommend to the Rugby Board members who the 

Association considers appropriate nominees for the Club’s prestigious awards including Life Membership, 

the Wally Meagher Trophy, Meritorious Service Awards and Inductees to the Randwick Hall of Fame.  The 

Board is the final arbiter. 

Life Members were guests of the Board in the Sponsors Area for the last home game for which those Life 

Members who attended are very appreciative. 

Additional Life Member 

At the 2015 Annual General Meeting of the Club, Dr Paul Raftos was elected a Life Member of the Club.  

Paul automatically became a member of the Life Members Association.   
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Paul has been a member of the Club for over thirty years.  Paul started as the Colts Doctor. Subsequently, 

he was appointed NSW Doctor and Australian Under 21s Doctor.  For almost 20 years Paul was an 

understudy to fellow Life Member, Dr Joe Casamento, the Club Doctor and in recent seasons Paul has 

been elevated to the role of Club Doctor. 

Paul served a period on the Club’s Board.  He is a welcome addition to the Life Members Association. 

For his outstanding service to the Club, the following member was recommended by the 
Life Members Association and approved by the Randwick Rugby Council for presentation as a Life 
Member nominee to the Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 25 November 2015.  He is 

Dr PN (Paul) Raftos 
 

In accordance with By-law 6 of the Club Constitution, the nominee is presented to the Annual 
General Meeting for election by Members where a three-fourths majority is required by secret ballot 
to determine the award of Life Membership. 
 

 
 
Dr Paul Raftos 
 
The involvement of Dr Paul Raftos with Randwick Rugby commenced through his participation in local 
junior rugby competitions. Following his graduation in Medicine at the University of New South Wales he 
returned to the Club as one of our two Honorary Medical Officers. In this capacity he has served our Colts 
and Senior Club players for the past 29 years. 
 
Playing Record 
 

 Member of Central Randwick and South Coogee Junior Clubs  1964-70 

 Gained selection in Easts-Randwick Junior Representative teams 1966-69 

 Member of The Scots College Second XV 1975 

 Member of the University of NSW Second Grade Senior Teams 1976-77 
 
Administration 
 

 Joined Randwick in 1986 and served the Colts as Doctor and Trainer 

 Served Colts and Grade Teams for almost 3 decades 

 Worked with fellow Medical Officer Dr Joe Casamento since 1996 

 Served on the (then) Management Committee 1994-95 
 
Other Rugby Service 
 

 Appointed Doctor to the NSW Under 21 Teams of  1995-99 

 Also served as Doctor to the Australian Under 21s for the same period, 1995-99 
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John Murray 

Life Member John Murray died suddenly on 7 May 2016 while holidaying in Bali.  John was elected a Life 

Member in 2005 for his considerable contribution to Randwick Rugby.  John played 85 games for the Club 

including 65 in 1st grade.  He subsequently coached Colts and Reserve Grade.  John served on the Rugby 

Board and was Deputy President from 2002 to 2004.  John was also a very active member of the Life 

Members Association.  He will be missed.  Vale John Murray. 

Conclusion 

On behalf of all our Life Members I acknowledge and appreciate the support and recognition the Life 

Members receive from the Rugby Council. 

As a segment of the Randwick Rugby community, the Association expounds the philosophy of a past 

commentator of the Club: 

“Here is a Club that primarily enjoys its football, enjoys the freedom and creativity of spinning a 

rugby ball from one pair of hands to another, relishes the chance to race pell mell from one side of 

the field to the other until suddenly the opposition goal line is breached and plundered.” 

The Association extends its best wishes for 2017 to the Director of Rugby, Nick Ryan, the First Grade Head 

Coach, Shannon Fraser, and the Colts Coaching Director and Club Administrator, Travis Partridge. 

PETER COURT 

Chairman 

 

The RDRUFC extends its condolences to the families of  

 

Geoffrey Roy Ball OAM, Charlie Clarke, Matthew Clift, Shirley Hovey, Peter Johnson, Allen Langley, John 

Murray, Cyril Nethery, Rod Slater and Ken Thornett 

 
 

 
 

Peter Johnson, Ken Thornett, Peter Tzannes, Geoff Ball 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Elected Life Members 
 

Life Members Elected Prior to 1947 

HW Baker* 1931 MM Atkins* 1941 

JM Dunningham* 1931 CH Towers* 1942 

NE Eglese* 1931 CR Davidson* 1942 

LB Callaghan* 1932 JRL Palfreyman* 1945 

JA Rigney* 1932 EK Dobbs* 1945 

FW Meagher* 1937   

  
Life Members Elected 1947-1969 

JF Lane* 1950 FC Thornley* 1958 

V Ford* 1951 HJC Kahl* 1961 

W Rowney* 1958 J O’Shea* 1965 

  
 

Life Members Elected 1970-1979 

KS Windon* 1970 JJ Hovey* 1975 

H Stephen* 1974 R Outterside 1976 

DC Furness* 1975 RW Meagher* 1979 

  
Life Members Elected 1980-2015 

JM McCulloch*    1982    LW Argue*  2001 

RSF Dwyer   1983    JB Casamento 2001 

JL Sayle   1985    TW Reid  2001 

PK Court   1986    JR Murray*  2005 

IM Kennedy   1989    RJ Willey  2005 

PM Willcox*   1991    G Karras  2007 

JM Maxwell   1993    P Antoniades  2008 

J Cotis*   1994    TG Evans   2008 

AA Gaffney   1994    DC Long  2010 

WT Outterside*   1994    WA Wheeler  2011 

DE Henry   1997    AD James  2011 

W Hope   1997    DP Habler  2012 

V Singer   1997    DS Eggins  2014 

CJ Windon*   1997    T McMahon  2014 

KAP Phibbs   1998    SP Poidevin  2014 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie 1998     PN Raftos  2015 

      * Denotes Deceased Life Members 
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Current Life Members   
     
R Outterside   1976    TW Reid  2001 

RSF Dwyer   1983    RJ Willey  2005 

JL Sayle   1985    G Karras  2007 

PK Court   1986    P Antoniades  2008 

IM Kennedy   1989    TG Evans  2008 

JM Maxwell   1993    DC Long  2010 

AA Gaffney   1994    WA Wheeler  2011 

DE Henry   1997    AD James  2011 

W Hope   1997    DP Habler  2012 

V Singer   1997    DS Eggins  2014 

KAP Phibbs   1998    T McMahon  2014 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie 1998    SP Poidevin  2014 

J B Casamento  2001    PN Raftos  2015 

 

 

 

 

Peter Court at the Jack Cotis Memorial luncheon aka “Props Lunch” 

 

From the RDRUFC Chaplain 

It is a privilege to serve as Club Chaplain at Randwick Rugby and especially after a number of years of 

knowing the support staff and longer-term players. The arrival of baby number three for our family in April 

means we’re outnumbered and onto drift defence, which made it harder for me to be around as much this 

season as I would have liked (on the upside, we’re swelling Randwick’s future ranks)! 

There have still been many opportunities to support the players through the ups and downs of the season, 

to sit with players until the ambulance arrives and listen to the struggles with recovery, as well as helping 

newer players to settle in. I’m looking forward to next year, to improving some structures around supporting 

players, and continuing to help our Club develop not only better players but better people.  

I hope everyone in the Galloping Greens community has a safe and special time this Christmas. 

Dave Rogers, Club Chaplain 
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Director of Rugby Report 

 

Season 2016 was another step in the right direction in the Club reclaiming the mantle as the ‘Destination 

Club’ in Australian Rugby and to the players, staff and sponsors who contributed to the achievements on 

and off the field goes a huge thank you. 

As a rugby program we look to three values that drive our behaviours: 

• Performance 

• Learning 

• Legacy 

Our academic, welfare and rugby programs have shining examples across these areas which have seen 

many of our players and staff achieve great team and personal success. In particular I would like to 

acknowledge our two premiership teams.   

Congratulations go to 2nd Grade, superbly led by Hadley Jackson, Richard Stanford, Phil Green and David 

Parsons. To avenge last year’s defeat says plenty about the depth and quality we are building in the Club. 

Premiership winning 2nd Colts coaches Tom Kellaway and Tim Clifford along with the player leadership 

team of Jum Woodhill and Sam Horwitz created a great environment for young players to learn and 

develop their rugby. The future of the Club is very bright with these quality coaches and players coming 

through. 

We see our Club and rugby program as a pathway to higher honours and it was great to see so many of 

our people make their mark in representative rugby and I would like to acknowledge a few: 

• David Horwitz, Ned Hanigan, Andrew Kellaway, Reece Robinson and Lukhan Tui making their 

Super Rugby debuts. 

• Henry Hutchison storming on to the World 7s scene and winning Rookie of the Year. 

• Harry Chapman, Vuni Fifita and Simon Kennewell for representing Australia at the IRB Junior World 

Cup U20 Championships. 

• Morgan Turinui securing an assistant coaching role with the Melbourne Rebels. 

To the Board, which is tireless behind the scenes and has been instrumental in plotting this new direction 

for our Club, goes a huge thank you. To call on the calibre of people like Bob Dwyer and Simon Poidevin let 

alone their fellow board members announces to our players that we possess representative standard 

administration, as much as on field prowess. 

Although we are pleased with 2016 we are not satisfied and we have taken the opportunity to reflect upon 

the areas we need to improve and identify the people, the skills and the resources we need to help us go to 

another level in 2017. 

Looking forward to sharing a successful 2017 with you all. 

Nick Ryan 
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Club kit man Ric McLallen and Director of Rugby Nick Ryan 
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First Grade Report 

 
 

Coach:    Shannon Fraser 

Assistant Coaches: Morgan Turinui and Jayson Brewer 

Managers:   Saxon Bowles and Brad Bishop 

Captains:   Mark Baldwin and Andrew Deegan 

 
The 2016 campaign began in early November 2015 on the unmarked and slightly overgrown top 

field at Latham Park. We assembled a group of aspirational men whose appetite for success was 

enhanced by the season just past and the desire to achieve greater things in 2016. 

 

Well before we were to be judged by our weekly performances, a culture of improvement and 

accountability was germinating within this group of myrtle men, as was the galvanization of a 

positive team identity, as well as the reinstating of a true love of the game and Club.  

 

The pre-season offered a significant opportunity to further enhance the technical skill application of 

the group and broaden the tactical understanding of the modern game and Randwick playing 

style.  

 

The season started with a rather confronting realisation that while significant gains had been made 

in the pre-season there was certainly a need for continued growth if our appetite for success was 

to be satisfied. A narrow escape in round one against a physical Parramatta team was enough to 

suppress any complacency that may have surfaced through the pre-season and trials.  

 

The weeks that followed not only produced the desired wins but also unearthed a confidence 

within the group that with focus and hard work anything is possible. The systems and structure put 

in place appeared to be working and the establishment of a work hard culture evident through the 

team’s defensive efforts – none more evident than the final 10 minutes against Sydney University, 

at University with only 14 players. 

 

As we approached the back half of the first round, our performances remained strong and 

reasonably consistent, however the results not as flattering with losses to Manly, Warringah and 

Norths, all of which by less than seven points and snatched on or after the full-time siren. We were 

now acutely aware that the 1-2 percenters of performance really matter. 

 

The second half of the season saw our performances fluctuate as a result of not only personnel 

changes but a loss in set piece dominance. What was strength was quickly becoming  vulnerability 

and a new challenge for us to overcome.  

 

The ‘final act’ in this production was not a true reflection of the effort, the commitment and the raw 

talent of this group and as our season ended prematurely, the stature of this group and this Club 

remain elevated and of strong moral fibre.  
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I’d be lying if I said I wasn’t disappointed in our final three performances, however I am also 

extremely proud of what this young group has achieved and excited at the prospects of 2017. Our 

year is close.  

 

The only way to convert inexperience into experience is by gaining the opportunity to learn on the 

run and through a willingness to risk failure to achieve success. Throughout 2016 the Club 

provided 17 players the opportunity to play their first 1st grade game while a total of 53 players 

represented first grade throughout the season.  

 

The leadership of new co-captains Mark Baldwin and Andrew Deegan provided stability and 

consistency in an environment that unavoidably kept changing.  

 

A special mention must go to our fourteen players who were selected to play NRC. These include 

David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway, Ned Hanigan, Reece Robinson, Sam Figg, Mark Baldwin, 

Andrew Deegan, Will Munro, Mitch Short, Sonny Satuala, Kuki Ma’afu, Andrew Tuala, Harrison 

Goddard and Sam Croke. 

 

I’d like to acknowledge also those players who wear jerseys 16 – 23 and who standby weekly to 

support and contribute to the success of the first grade team. The role they play is significant and 

a vital component to the team’s performance. Thank you. 

 

Off the field there has been a great team working to get the players in a position to perform. To my 

fellow coaches, Jayson Brewer and Morgan Turinui, thanks go for your highly valued assistance 

throughout the season. I’d also like to acknowledge the fantastic job Michael Stephens has done 

in getting the players physically prepared on a weekly basis. Additionally, the support provided by 

second grade coaches Hadley Jackson, Phil Green and Richard Stanford along with lower grade 

coaches Matt Buckland, Joe Picone and Jeffrey Sayle has been outstanding. 

 

Thank you also to Managers Saxon Bowles and Brad Bishop and also our gear steward and 

photographer Ric McLallan 

 

Last but certainly not least, I’d like to acknowledge and thank Director of Rugby Nick Ryan for his 

passion, energy and support throughout the season.  

 

Up the Wicks 

 

Shannon Fraser 

Head Coach Randwick Rugby Union Club 
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Andrew Deegan scores 

 

53 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest:  Andrew Deegan 

Most appearances:  Andrew Deegan 18 games 

Leading Point Scorer:   Andrew Deegan 194 – 5 tries, 50 conv, 23 Pen Goals 

Leading Try Scorer:  Nick Kellaway 8 

Leading Goal Scorer:  Andrew Deegan 169 Conv. 50; Penalty/Field Goals 23 

 
17 Players made their First Grade debut 

 
Alofa Alofa, Lachlan Anderson, Nic Andrews, Andy Ball, Rhys Brodie, Harry Chapman, Sam Connor, 
Harrison Goddard, Jack Hayson, Simon Kennewell, Will Lafalofo, Sam Latunipulu, Henry Leslie, James 
Purcell, Reece Robinson, Sonny Satuala, Andrew Tuala 
 

 

David Horwitz Round 7 v. West Harbour 2016 
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2016 Sevens Squad 

 

 

 

1sts Coach Shannon Fraser 
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First Grade 2016 Season Results – Shute Shield 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

Parramatta Won 25-20 Won 24-20 

Gordon Won 50-14 
 

Sydney University Won 23-19 Won 36-26 

Penrith Won 71-0 
 

Eastwood Won 32-25 Lost 14-29 

Manly Lost 20-22 
 

West Harbour  Won 34-14 Won 75-10 

Warringah Lost 20-27 Lost 20-34 

Eastern Suburbs Won 34-31 Won 24-17 

Northern Suburbs Lost 10-12 
 

Southern Districts Lost 20-23 Won 28-24 

   

   

 
  

 Qualifying Semi Final Southern Districts Lost 26-29 

 
  

   

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 77 47 

Goals 56 34 

Penalty Goals 20 15 

Field Goals 1 6 

Penalty Tries   

Total Points 560 366 

   Played 18 

 Won 12 

 Lost 6 

 Drawn 
 

 Bonus Points 13 

 Win Points 48 

 Total Points 61 

 Points For 560 

 Points Against 366 
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Second Grade Report  

 

 

Coaches: Hadley Jackson, Richard Stanford and Phil Green 

Manager: Peter Meagher 

Captains: Jack Johnson and David Parsons 

 

“Culture eats any form of forward planning for breakfast - ”Ben Ryan - Fiji Olympic 7s Coach - Gold 
Medalists  

 
What a year was had with a fantastic group of players, support staff, friends and family. All of whom are 

now lifelong friends! To get to the point of having more than 30 players putting their hand up to play in the 

GF, and continuing to train throughout the finals with no promise of game time, to then getting 30 or more 

turning up to our Thursday night dinners at different Eastern Suburbs venues every week shows what a 

group we had. 

 

This group didn’t just have camaraderie; these boys have bucket loads of talent, drive and commitment that 

can only be shown to its potential if they come together as a group. Our job as coaches was then to play to 

the group’s strengths, to keep them confident and fresh and to then analyse what we needed to do to beat 

the Opposition on a weekly basis.  

 

I said to the boys, “there is no luck involved at the Business End of the year”. Each unnoticed effort from 

the players, coaches and staff all came together and culminate when the pressure is at its greatest and 

come together they did on the final day of our season. I was calm on Grand Final Day because I knew the 

team had done everything in their power to put the best performance on the park. In sport though, you can 

plan all you like, but you never know how the opponent has prepared and will front up on the day. For us, 

Easts showed they had not put in the same effort that we had, and we were rewarded with our best 

Performance of the Year and a trophy to take back to Coogee Oval!  

 

The way this group bounced back at times throughout the year when the chips were down, says a lot about 

who they are as men. We learned a harsh lesson or two throughout the round robin games, but always 

managed to keep a smile on our face, learn from it and come back better the next week. Halfway through 

the year we had a rising injury toll and put our trust in two extremely talented teenage Indigenous boys who 

are by nature quiet boys, but led our team around the park from 9 and 10 with maturity beyond their years. 

These two have a bright future in our game. To be down 20 - 0, in a preliminary final against the old foes 

Sydney University and to come back and win 42 - 27 shows what character and belief in a team can 

transfer to on the field.   

 

We were led superbly throughout the season, firstly by Jack Johnson, who puts his body on the line the 

same way he does surfing 15ft waves off Bronte so the boys can do nothing but follow his lead, and 

secondly to David Parsons, who led us to victory the best way he knows how, by example. This was never 
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more evident than on Grand Final day, when he showed that no one would stand over him or any one of 

our other 21 mates out there and try to bully us (perhaps the fact we were up 28-0 at the time eased the 

pain on me that we were then down to 14 players). 

He showed the way and we all went with him!  

 

There wasn’t one member of the team this year who put himself above anyone else, and if they wanted to 

be they were flushed out pretty quickly. We had 4th grade players who would sit on our bench week in 

week out, and we had no hesitation in putting them on the field when they were needed, because we knew 

that we would all lift each other out there to get the job done, and they were needed on quite a few 

occasions but always stood up for us! 

 

To my main man Richard Stanford, he showed what an extremely good coach he is by single handedly 

taking apart the Easts set piece, and this played a major role in us winning the premiership. The way he not 

only knew on paper what we needed to do, but relayed it to the boys and got them to follow it to a tee was a 

testament to how well he did his job! 

 

Also a huge thank you goes to Peter Meagher, Phil Green and the rest of the Medical and Performance 

Staff;  thank you for your time and effort with the boys this year as well as the friends, families and partners 

of our team who supported us throughout the year.  

 

To the Club, from the board to the full time staff and everyone else involved, thank you for the continued 

support and opportunity to lead a great group, we trust you all enjoyed us putting that trophy in the Cabinet.  

 

Hadley Jackson 

 

 

  

    

“A real team effort” 
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65 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest:  David Vea 

Most appearances:  Lewis Taie and Toby Johnston 15 

Leading Points Scorer: Tom Hiddleston 84 – 2 tries, 22 conv., 10 penalties 

Leading Try Scorer:  Will Lafalofo 6 tries 

Leading Goal Scorer:  Tom Hiddleston 74 points – 22 conv., and 10 penalties 

 

 

2
nd

 Grade 

 

 

 
Dashville Kuarte 
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Second Grade 2016 Season Results – Colin Caird Shield 

 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

Parramatta Won 27-8 Won 59-18 

Gordon Won 33-0 
 

Sydney University Lost 36-40 Lost 17-27 

Penrith Won 50-0 
 

Eastwood Won 17-15 Lost 17-51 

Manly Won 32-5 
 

West Harbour  Won 63-25 Won 90-15 

Warringah Lost 15-29 Won 34-17 

Eastern Suburbs Loat 24-32 Won 35-24 

Northern Suburbs Won 34-32  
 

Southern Districts Won 29-18 Won 40-17 

   

   

 
  

 Qualifying Semi Final Manly Won 22-13 

Semi Final Sydney University Won 42-27 

Grade Final Eastern Suburbs Won 28-12 

   

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 92 56 

Goals 63 27 

Penalty Goals 22 13 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries   

Total Points 652 373 

   Played 18 

 Won 13 

 Lost 5 

 Drawn 
 

 Bonus Points 13 

 Win Points 52 

 Points Against 366 

  Season statistics do not include the finals series 
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Third Grade Report 

 

Coach: Matt Buckland 

Manager:  Ian Holder and Dave Habler  

Captain: Tom Wallace   

It was a season of ‘what might have been’. We started the year full of hope as the boys really ripped in 

during pre-season and got off to a flyer winning all three of our trial games, the last of which was an 

outstanding performance to beat Sydney University at University – the perfect way to begin the season 

proper. Our first assignment was away at Parramatta – the boys got off to a nervous start but our class 

showed and we pulled away over the last 20 minutes running out 34-7 winners. We backed this up with a 

win at Gordon and the boys were feeling good.  

Round 3 saw us travel back to Sydney Uni….. They came flying out of the blocks and stunned us, we were 

20-0 down before we even blinked but the boys didn’t panic and reeled them in to lead 28-25 with 5 mins to 

go however a late penalty and last minute try snatched the game from our grasp – our first loss for the year, 

36-28.   

Two wins against Manly and Penrith with a loss to Eastwood meant we reached round 7 sitting on a 4 and 

2 win/loss record. Round 7 saw us beat West Harbour 45-7 but we backed that up with a disappointing loss 

away to the Rats which then brought us to round 9 – a home game versus Eastern Suburbs, our local rivals 

– unfortunately we blew this game – we were 20-14 up at half time but didn’t return swinging at all allowing 

Easts to run over the top of us and take the victory.  

A great win against Northern Suburbs the following week soothed the pain but we again backed it up with a 

shocking performance at home versus Southern Districts the week after losing 3-0! A coach killer!  

At this point we lost five of our starting 15 who had planned overseas trips – this left the side a little battered 

and bruised and meant we only managed three wins out of the remaining games beating Parramatta 43-0, 

Southern Districts 34-12 and West Harbour 41-12 – we had two heartbreaking losses to Uni 15-14 (penalty 

kick on the bell) and to Easts 25-22. 

We finished the season with 9 wins and 9 losses and missed out on a finals berth by 4 points on the 

competition ladder – 1 win was all we needed to have made it to the finals…… There were a lot of positives 

from the season and we will see almost all of this very young side return next year with more experience 

and a better idea of what is needed to make the top four in a very competitive grade across all clubs. 

Matt Buckland 

 

Some of our champion Randwick ballboys 
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3rd Grade 

 

70 players appeared in Third Grade 

Most appearances  Ryan Powter 14 

Leading Try Scorer  Sam Connor 8 – 40 points 

Leading Goal Scorer   Tom Hiddleston 45 points, 15 conv., and 5 penalties 

Leading Points Scorer Tom Hiddleston 45 points, 15 conv., and 5 penalties 

Best and Fairest  Luke Rowntree 
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Forwards training session with Mario Ledesma at Latham Park 

 

 

Valerio Ricci 
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Third Grade 2016 Season Results – J.R.Henderson Shield 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

Parramatta Won 34-7 Won 43 - 0 

Gordon Won 29-17 
 

Sydney University Lost 28-36 Lost 14-15 

Penrith Won 78-5 
 

Eastwood Lost 5-24 Lost 3-40 

Manly Won 12-9 
 

West Harbour  Won 45-7 Won 41-12 

Warringah Lost 14-27 Lost 24-36 

Eastern Suburbs Lost 2-47 Lost 22-25 

Northern Suburbs Won 17-7 
 

Southern Districts Lost 0-3 Won 34-12 

   

   

 
  

 Qualifying Semi Final DNQ 
 

 
  

   

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 68 48 

Goals 45 31 

Penalty Goals 11 8 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries   

Total Points 463 329 

   Played 18 

 Won 9 

 Lost 9 

 Drawn 
 

 Bonus Points 12 

 Win Points 36 

 Total Points 48 
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Fourth Grade Report 

 

Coaches:   Joe Picone and Jeff Sayle 

Managers:   Allen Stutchbury and Ian Holder 

Captains:   Tom Weber and Jeremiah Morkos 

Marty Kiernan decided to step aside due to family commitments this year and I thought it would be a nice 

time for me to step in and continue the strong foundations which he has laid down. Over this year I have 

gained a greater appreciation of Marty’s hard work. 

Dealing with, at times, 50 plus players and only having a 60 minute game to provide them with was quite 

the challenge. However, the team got on with it and trained hard to improve their fitness and skills which 

had us early front runners with significant victories over Sydney University and arch enemy Eastern 

Suburbs. 

As the season went on we dropped our guard and let in some losses which therefore resulted in us 

dropping down the ladder to 5th place. A potential spot in the finals for the first time in two years saw the 

players regroup and show the courage that’s within them to bounce back to take on Sydney Uni in what can 

only be described as rubbish conditions. The game itself was of the highest order with lots of courage 

displayed and an ample supply of adventurous rugby with the heartbreaking loss in the last minute. I was 

never more proud of them on that day as they exemplified the characteristics of what it means to play for 

this Club. With Tom Weber`s inspirational leadership (Thanks Tom for your efforts this season and one 

more year around the block for you “Captain my Captain”) we all now know we can match and defeat the 

best in this competition. We have them in our sights and we will be coming after them in 2017. 

Congratulations go to Jerry Morkos for best and fairest and Valerio Ricci on the Barbarian award. 

It`s my pleasure to announce the Dick Quinlan award for best clubman in 4th grade which is Luke 

Roughton. His play was of the highest standard and was a pleasure to coach 

Many thanks go out to Ian Holder for his non-stop dedication to the team. Mate, you are a great Randwick 

man. Thanks also to my other manager Allen Stutchbury who is a good mate of mine and of the players. 

When Big Show suffered what at the time looked like a catastrophic neck injury the one person he wanted 

by his side was Allen. This shows the degree of affection the players have towards Allen. All wish him well 

for his global gallivanting and hope to see him down at the games next year.  

Thanks go to Nick Ryan for all the hard work put in for players. The shape and skills drilled into them 

worked like a charm, thank you. 

Further ‘thank you’s go to many people who gave their time and efforts to the players in 2016. A particular 

shout out goes to Clarissa; her support (including the biscuits and cakes) is what binds a club. To Dan 

Dowe, thank you for the million and one things that you do for this Club. I get tired just looking at what you 

get up to! Thanks also go to Chris Fraser and Mike Lewis (with strange match day hats), for their much 

appreciated efforts. 

A hearty congratulations goes out to both 2nd grade and 2nd grade colts on their victories this year. Well 

done gents!  

Finally to my co-coach Jeff Sayle and patron of the Club. A man whose knowledge and passion is not 

matched anywhere. Thank you Jeff, your wisdom is invaluable. 

Thank you all and best wishes,  Joe Picone 
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59 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest  Jeremiah Morkos      

Most appearances:  Tom Booth 17 

Leading Point Scorer:  Tom Booth 

Leading Try Scorer:  Matt Considine 6 – 30 points 

Leading Goal Scorer:  Tom Booth 45 points – 15 conv., and 5 penalties  

 

4th Grade 

 

Alan Kaihau 
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Fourth Grade 2016 Season Results – J.R.Henderson Cup 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

Parramatta Won 41-12 Won 25-18 

Gordon Won 43-0 
 

Sydney University Won 22-10 Lost 14-17 

Penrith Won 64-0 
 

Eastwood Lost 20-24 Lost 12-30 

Manly Won 15-11 
 

West Harbour  Won 26-13 Won 55-24 

Warringah Lost 5-12 Won 23-15 

Eastern Suburbs Won 11-5 Lost 24-27 

Northern Suburbs Lost 5-10 
 

Southern Districts Won 17-8 Lost 19-24 

   

   

 
  

 Qualifying Semi Final Sydney University Lost 17-22 

 
  

   

   Season Scoring *Does not include the QSF 

  For Against 

Tries 70 36 

Goals 37 18 

Penalty Goals 9 15 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries   

Total Points 451 261 

   Played 18 

 Won 12 

 Lost 6 

 Drawn 
 

 Bonus Points 12 

 Win Points 48 

 Total Points 60 
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 Valerio Ricci and Jerry Morkos 

 

Hunter Makamaka 
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4ths Managers Ian Holder and Allen Stutchbury with Coach Joe Picone 

 

 

Silly Sunday supporters at the Colts GF
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Director of Colts Report 2016 

This year the Randwick Colts continued to take steps in the right direction. 3rd Colts placed Minor 

Premiers, 1st and 2nd Colts placing second,  with each team only losing three games in a long grueling 

regular season. We have taken the right steps in terms of depth and quality across our program. Finishing 

2nd in the Colts Club Championship was a great achievement. However winning the 2nd Colts Premiership 

was the biggest achievement of 2016. Led by coaches Tom Kellaway and Tim Clifford the 2nd Colts boys 

achieved a huge success in bringing home a Premiership that has been dominated by Sydney Uni for the 

past 12 seasons. 

From November through to August 70 boys gave 110% week in and week out. 

From our Australian 20s representative players to the young local players on the bench in 3rd grade Colts, 

each player had a common goal, to work hard for their mates and wear the myrtle green with pride. Our 

program continued to provide pathways for our representative players with Harry Chapman, Vuni Fifita, 

Sepesa Tarogi, Tom Molloy and Tom Pirrodi all exposed to the Australian 20s in 2016. Our 1st Colts 

Captain Jack Hayson captained NSW 20s through the Super 20s along with eight of his team mates in the 

20s squad.  

The year would not have been so successful if it wasn¹t for our volunteer coaches and support staff. Our 

rugby coaching staff of Rod Cutler, Tom Hart, Tom Kellaway, Tim Clifford, James Lancaster and Michael 

Clarke were a great staff to work with. The time they put into their roles went above and beyond what was 

expected and they were the reason we were so successful. 

Adam Herbert led our S & C program superbly well, providing a program that kept fit and strong players 

available to the coaching staff all year. Our managers were brilliant through the year, led by 1st Colts 

manager Sam Williamson, Sean Cooney ran our 2s and Graham Neville superbly in charge of our 3s. A big 

thank you goes to the staff at Eastside Physio and additionally to valued Club Doctor Dr Paul Raftos for 

their contribution through the year. 

Up The Wicks 

Travis Partridge 

 

Colts 2 Dion Narayan scores 
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First Grade Colts Report 

 

Coaches: Travis Partridge / Rod Cutler 

Manager: Sam Williamson 

Captain: Jack Hayson 

2016 proved to be an interesting year for Randwick’s 1st Colts. Missing eleven players through the early 

part of the season to representative duties provided the opportunity for our depth to be truly tested. Our 

squad was a great group of young players who worked incredibly hard throughout the year but struggled to 

reach their full potential. Injuries to key personnel, representative duties and a change to the coaching staff 

were all factors that affected the team. However they never offered any excuses and just always pushed 

harder to get better and improve. Finishing outright 2nd with 15 wins from 18 games is a tremendous effort 

by all accounts; however this team knew they had more. A loss against local rivals Easts in week 1 of the 

finals put us in a tough semi-final against Sydney University, and we were not good enough on the day. 

 

The team was led by lion-hearted skipper Jack Hayson with support from Tom Molloy both leading by 

example all year. The two senior leaders were given solid support from 1st year players Lochie Simpson, 

Pesa Tarogi, Harry Chapman and Nath Gittoes. Best and fairest Justin Cooper was inspirational through 

the year and will return in 2017 together with fresh faces to give the competition a real shake! 

 

A special thanks to assistant coach Tom Hart and the rest of the coaching staff for all their support through 

2016. 

 
 

2016 First Colts with coaches Tom Hart and Travis Partridge 
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First Grade Colts 2016 Season Results 

 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

 Parramatta Won 27-12 Won 51-5 

 Gordon Lost 23-34 
 

 Sydney University Lost 28-38 Lost 12-49 

 Penrith Won 51-12 
 

 Eastwood Won 45-18 Won 67-14 

 Manly Won 22-8 
 

 West Harbour  Won 55-12 Won 59-0 

 Warringah Won 48-7 Won 41-12 

 Eastern Suburbs Won 27-22 Won 19-12 

 Northern Suburbs Won 29-21 
 

 Southern Districts Won 34-27 Won 36-24 

     

 

 

 
 
 

 Qualifying Semi Final Eastern Suburbs Lost 15-20 

  
Season Scoring 

 
 

For Against 

 Tries 112 47 
 Goals 54 34 

 Penalty/Field Goals 2 8 

 Penalty Tries 1 0 

 Total Points 674 327 

 

 

 
 

 Played 18 

  Won 15 

  Lost 3 

  Drawn 0 

  Bonus Points 16 
  Win Points 60 

  Total Points 76 

   
*These statistics do not include the 
Finals series 
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48 Players appeared in Colts First Grade 

 

Most Appearances  Jack Hayson and Bill Freeman 15 each 

Leading Try Scorer  Sepesa Loga-Tarogi – 50 points 

Leading Points Scorer Bill Freeman 88, 9 Tries, 20 conv., 1 penalty 

Leading Goal Scorer  Bill Freeman 43 points 

Best and Fairest  Justin Cooper 

 

Colts Jersey presentation with Morgan Turinui 
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Colts Dinner at UNSW 

    

 

 

Colts 1 with Tom Hart 
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Second Grade Colts Report 

Coach:                           Tom Kellaway 

Manager:                       Sean Cooney and Sam Williamson 

Captain:    Jum Woodhill                        

Season 2016 saw Randwick out to topple arguably the longest currently standing hold on a premiership 

trophy in Sydney Grade Rugby. Sydney University had held the Shell Trophy for the past 15 seasons, 

defeating a gallant Randwick in a nail biter in 2015. 

After a bumper season of recruitment and development of our existing players, the Coaching team entered 

the season highly enthused about the potential of this team, but were cautious of the scenario, knowing 

how temperamental a second grade side can be, being affected by injuries and player movement’s week 

on week. 

Season 2016 started with a solid, albeit uninspiring win against Parramatta in some rather extreme heat at 

Latham Park, what followed somewhat pushed the team up against the walls. A 28-0 loss to Gordon in 

round 2 and a 39-10 loss against reigning premiers Sydney University in round 3 set the team on a 

desperate soul searching mission. After a couple of long discussion with the wider playing group, and a 

refocused attitude at training, the team bounced back to record a 129-0 win against Penrith in round 4.  

From round 4 until round 14, the 2nds side charged forward unbeaten, including a tense 31-27 victory over 

Southern Districts at Forshaw park, with 24 points coming in the final 11 minutes of play from Randwick, 

and a 1 point victory over norths with a penalty from Dion Narayan after the full time siren.  

The purple patch of form saw the side take wins against Eastern Suburbs at Woollahra Oval, in a dominant 

display and in the return fixture, as well as wins over Manly in the bucketing rain, Eastwood at TG Millner 

and Warringah at Coogee.  

Round 14 saw the team take on Sydney University, and in a case of Groundhog Day syndrome, Sydney 

University led 24-0 at half time, with the final score ending 24-7 to Sydney University. This would be the 

final time we would have exposure to Sydney University, knowing that a premiership would need to find 

something special to topple the reigning premiers, and collect a first victory over the students. 

The side recomposed themselves and dispatched Southern Districts, got out of jail against Eastwood and 

beat Warringah comprehensively to enter the finals 2nd on the ladder after a long and gruelling season.  

The Club presentation night saw Elliot Robbins our star flanker capped as the Best and Fairest for the side, 

recording 14 votes, including 4 man of the match performances. He was closely followed by inspirational 

captain Jum Woodhill, hardworking backrowers Ryan Kenny-Wilson, who missed half the season with 

injury but polled strongly in the opening 8 weeks of competition, hardworking centre Steve Gibson and big 

running lock Alec Corcoran. 

Round one of the finals saw the side take on Southern Districts at Forshaw Park. Despite a week of rain, 

miserable weather, a raft of injuries, resulting in the side fielding a make shift backline with players tacking 

the field well under 100%, the boys were able to come out the other side with a 1 point win. This was 

arguably the game that turned the season. After having been shown up by Souths earlier in the season in 

the scrum, the side dug deep to produce a display that drastically reduced the impact of the souths pack, 

this including taking 2 penalties at scrum time. Despite incurring a late penalty try due to the strong 
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pressure applied by the Souths scrum, it was largely this determination to fight at the set piece that gave 

the backs the platform to attack Souths out wide, causing them grief all over the park. 

The Souths victory pinned Randwick against Norths at Chatswood Oval. Having the chance to watch 

Sydney University remove a subpar Gordon outfit in the first semi-final, Norths now stood in the way of 

Randwick having one final shot at setting the record straight and ending the unbeaten run. However, Norths 

were no easy beat side, coming off the back off a 50 point flogging of Gordon a week earlier.  

It was this display that set the side up for what was to come. On a sunny winters afternoon in Chatswood, 

Randwick completely annihilated Norths, taking the semi-final 48-26. Every aspect of the game was as 

good as it could be, with the forwards setting a dominant platform, playing field position well and the backs 

running riot, led by playmakers Dion Narayan and Pat Pellegrini. Dan Boardman was immense in the 

centres causing a type of grief Norths hadn’t before experienced. 

When the siren went following the semifinal victory, the celebration was short lived, as the boys grouped 

together and set the target. One week from this point, they would be champions. No other result would 

suffice. 

A week of training came and went, despite the weather doing its best to throw everyone off, with both 

sessions taking place in torrential rain. 

The Grand Final would be played at Forshaw Park, the home of Southern Districts, whom Randwick had 

beaten in the 1st round of the finals. Buoyed by the victory of the 2nd grade side the day before, and backed 

by the words of the 2nd grade captain Dave Parsons at training on Thursday evening, the boys prepared for 

the game as well as they had all season. Something about this day was different. A largely undeserved 

sense of favouritism, a feeling of calm emanated from the entire squad, and from them all a sense of 

complete confidence that they had the tools to do the job. 

The game started poorly with Sydney University crossing for a soft try 10 minutes into play. Despite the 

setback, the boys returned to the centre to start over again, as they had so many times before. Within 5 

minutes of the restart, Lock Alec Corcoran was over for the first of his 5 points after brilliant lead up work 

from Jum Woodhill, Jack Harrison and Dan Boardman. Shortly after the restart, Corcoran was over again 

from close range, taking Randwick to a 14-7 lead. The students looked shaky, and it finally broke 10 

minutes from half time with the university scrum completely disintegrating under the immense power of the 

Randwick tight 5 of DJ Tifa, Will Anderson, Keiran Bonnin, Esei Ha’angana and Alec Corcoran. With the 

final play of the half winger Gus Simpson turned on the footwork to crash over out wide, sending Randwick 

into the sheds 19-10 in front, the first time in the season Randwick had led Sydney University at any point. 

Following oranges, the boys set about taking charge, marching down into the University 22. For the next 15 

minutes, the team battered the line with backrowers Lewis Allen and Joe Whitelock trying every trick in the 

book and Sam Horwitz marshalling the troops over and over.  After what seemed like an eternity, the gap 

appeared and classy fly half Pat Pellegrini waltzed through the gap to score to the right of the up rights.  

University would reply with a try of their own shortly thereafter, but needing something to put the game 

beyond doubt, the forwards marched the ball deep into University territory and after repeated raids at the 

line, like so many times before, Dion Narayan crossed to give Randwick what felt an unassailable lead with 

under 4 minutes to play. 

University would score almost from the kick off to bring it back to a 7 point game, however from the final 

restart and final play of the game, the University fullback was unable to take the ball cleanly, losing it 

forward, and just like that, the run was over. Randwick had gone in as the under dogs, trained through 

storms the week of the game, had endured team changes week on week, with the same 15 taking to the 

field once all season, being the major semi-final and grand final, and those were the two games in which it 
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mattered. The 15 year streak was over; Sydney University would lose only its second grand final attempt of 

six for the weekend.  

The second grade colts side this year was blessed to have had so many players of such quality, but also so 

many boys capable of leading the side around the park. Jum Woodhill, Sam Horwitz, Jack Harrison, Keiran 

Bonnin and Rory Williams all provide a huge level of input to the team this year as leaders, and with such a 

young side, their contributions were invaluable. We had a number of school boys play with us this year in 

DJ Tifa, Michael Midson, Esei Ha’angana, Josh Noonan, Pat Pellegrini, Will Harrison, Callum Quinn, Sione 

Thomas and Fui Gibson. The fact we were able to blood so many young men bodes extremely well for the 

future of Randwick rugby, and the colts program. 

What we achieved this year was entirely down to the dedication and commitment of this group of men to 

achieve something history said they shouldn’t be able too. There resolve was second to none, their attitude 

was exceptional and they should all be extremely proud of what they were able to achieve. 

Special thanks goes to the colts coaching group of Travis Partridge, Tom Hart, Rod Cutler, James 

Lancaster and  Michael Clarke for their support and help in getting the boys to the pinnacle, and special 

mention to Travis Partridge on his legendary water boy skills on grand final day lifting the boys every time 

he was able to get on the pitch. To Adam Herbet the genius S & C specialist who kept the battered bodies 

on the park. To our colts team managers Sean Cooney and Sam Williamson, thank you for your continued 

time and patience. To the Second Grade side for their time and kind words during grand final week, 

especially to Declan O’Donohue, Dave Parsons and Hadley Jackson for being a constant source of support 

and guidance. Lastly thank you to Randwick Grade players Mitch Short, Ned Hanigan, Andrew Deegan, 

Nick Kellaway and Andrew Kellaway for spending the final Thursday training session training with and 

against the boys for the night. Your input and time was so unbelievably valuable to the boys, we truly 

believe we couldn’t have achieved what we did if not for your time and help.  

Season 2017 will see us defend what took us 15 years to claim. The Shell Trophy isn’t going anywhere in a 

hurry! 

Tom Kellaway 

 

 
Pat Pellegrini 
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Second Grade 2016 Season Results 

 

Opponent Rond 1 Round 2 
 Parramatta Won 31-0 Won 29-12 

 Gordon Lost 0-24 
 

 Sydney University Lost 10-39 Lost 7-24 

 Penrith Won 118-0 
 

 Eastwood Won 27-15 Won 28-15 

 Manly Won 50-7 
 

 West Harbour  Won 45-10 Won 57-17 

 Warringah Won 29-15 Won 42-33 

 Eastern Suburbs Won 35-7 Won 43-19 

 Northern Suburbs Won 29-28 
 

 Southern Districts Won 31-13 Won 33-24 

     

    
Qualifying Semi Final 

Southern 
Districts Won 24 - 23 

 

Semi Final 
Northern 
Suburbs Won 48- 26 

 Elimination Final 
 

   
 

Grand Final 
Sydney 

University Won 24-27 
 

    Season Scoring 
   For Against 
 Tries 99 50 
 Goals 73 21 
 Penalty/Field Goals 1 8 
 Penalty Tries 1 

  Total Points 644 316 
 

   Played 17 
  

Won 14 

*These statistics do not 
include the Finals series 

 
 Lost 3 

  Draw 
   Bonus Points 15 

  Win Points 56 
  Total Points 71 
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59 Players appeared in Colts 2nd Grade 

    
Most Appearances 

Dan Boardman 15, 14 starts 1 Rep 
Matt Serhon 14 

  

Leading Try Scorer Dion Narayan 7 tries 

 
Leading Points Scorer 

Pat Pelligrini 104 points, 4 Tries, 20 
Conversions 

 Leading Goals Scorer Pat Pelligrini 84 points 

 Best and Fairest Elliot Robbins 

  

 

 

Backrow: Tim Clifford (Coach), Zac Trinkler, Elliot Robbins, Sam Musgrove, Will Anderson, Alec Corcoran, 

Pat Pellgrini, Esei Ha’angana, Matt Serhorn, Rory Williams, Billy Funch, Tyrell Naleeba, Kieran Bonnin, 

Kyle Park, Lewis Allen, Joseph Whitelock, Tom Kellaway (Coach) 

 

Front row: DJ Tifa, Steve Gibson, Sam Horwitz ©, Jum Woodhill ©, Jack Harrison, Dan Boardman, Josh 

Noonan, Angus Simpson 

 

Missing: Will Harrison, Michael Midson 
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Third Grade Colts Report 

 

Coaches:  James Lancaster and Michael Clarke 

Managers:  Graham Neville 

Captains:  Guy Beynon, Joe Whitelock and Tom Nolan 

 

3rd grade Colts was heavily subscribed to this year and as a result Clarkey and myself had the pleasure of 

juggling a bench most weeks of 10+ boys.  

Never the less in typical Wicks fashion and dedication our bench players approached training and match 

days with the same intensity as that of the first grade Colts boys. They are a credit to the Club and if it 

wasn’t for those fringe players we wouldn’t have won the Minor Premiership this year. 

At one point we had about nine wins on the trot but couldn’t take out Uni the two times we met during the 

season even after taking the lead in both games. In the Semi Final against Uni (after a disappointing loss to 

Norths the previous week) Uni managed to come from behind in the last minute of the game to steal victory 

thanks to subbing on a 1st Grade player who helped get them over the line. Subsequently the following 

week they won the Premiership against Easts. Am I still bitter? You bet I am haha! but nothing detracts 

from a very successful season with a champion bunch of young blokes, some of whom are still at school in 

Year 11 and year 12. The future looks great for these Wicks boys and Clarkey and myself look forward to 

Season 2017. 

Special thanks from all the 3rd Grade Colts family goes to: 

 Manager Graham Neville 

 Adam Herbert for his excellent work and commitment to the team not just in training but on match 

days. 

 Peter Dumbleton for training the backs twice weekly throughout the season  

 All the Colts coaches for being legends.  

 Kai L and Harry C for their awesome ball boy skills 

Thanks everyone, we couldn’t do it without you all. 

James Lancaster 

81 Players appeared in Colts 3rd Grade 
 

    Most Appearances Greg Svanfelds 

 Leading Try Scorer Greg Svanfelds 8 Tries 40 points 

 Leading Goals Scorer Ethan McGuiggan 24 Conv. 

 Leading Points Scorer Ethan McGuiggan 68 points 

 Best and Fairest Joe Whitelock 
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Third Grade 2016 Season Results 

 

 Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

 Parramatta Won 31-0 Won 29-12 

 Gordon Lost 0-24 
 

 Sydney University Lost 10-39 Lost 7-24 

 Penrith Won 118-0 
 

 Eastwood Won 27-15 Won 28-15 

 Manly Won 50-7 
 

 West Harbour  Won 45-10 Won 57-17 

 Warringah Won 29-15 Won 42-33 

 Eastern Suburbs Won 35-7 Won 43-19 

 Northern Suburbs Won 29-28 
 

 Southern Districts Won 31-13 Won 33-24 

     

   
 

Qualifying Semi Final 
Northern 
Suburbs 

Lost 17-22 

 
Semi Final 

Sydney 
University 

Lost 17-21 

  
 

   Season Scoring 

 
 

For Against 

 Tries 77 42 

 Goals 44 22 

 Penalty/Field Goals 1 7 

 Penalty Tries 
  

 Total Points 478 275 

 
  

 Played 18 
 

 Won 15 
 

 Lost 3 
 

 Drawn/Bye 
  

 Bonus Points 14 
 

 Win Points 60 
 

 Total Points 74 
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3rd Colts with manager Graham Neville and coach James Lancaster 

 

 

 

Vuni Fifita and Simon Kennewell Australia U20s  
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Randwick Rugby Scholarships 

 

Congratulations to the recipients of Scholarships for 2016 

Andrew Deegan - UNSW St Hilliers 

Andrew Kellaway – UNSW Lexcen 

Henry Hutchinson – UNSW Lexcen 

Jum Woodhill – Mazda 

Nathaniel Gittoes – UNSW St Hilliers 

Ned Hanigan - UNSW St Hilliers 

Nick Kellaway - UNSW St Hilliers 

Sam Musgrave – UNSW St Hilliers 

Lachie Simpson – UNSW St Hillers 

 

Henry Hutchison Aussie 7s  

 
 

2016 Colts Coaches and the Shell Trophy Premiership Shield  
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Rookie of the Year Harrison Goddard 

 
 

 
Mitch Short 
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Reports from Randwick Junior Village Clubs 
 

Clovelly JRFC Report 

 

The 2016 season saw twenty-two teams enjoying their rugby experience in the blue and white of the mighty Eagles. 

From our brand new U6s exploring their first touch of the game to the now skillful and seasoned U12s, I hope all 300 

of our young players have continued to gain from being part of this Club. 

In addition to the development benefits that the physical side of our game brings, I’m a great believer that participation 

in team sport opens up opportunities for kids to learn to be part of something bigger than themselves. Our Coaches 

carry the responsibility of having the greatest influence on the way our kids experience those opportunities and so, 

foremost, our thanks as parents goes to all who took on that role again this season. 

Our fourteen magnificent minis teams, from U6s to U9s, acquitted themselves well at the carnival like mayhem that 

makes up a Saturday morning at Nagle Park during winter. The Club has amassed a particularly strong age group in 

this year’s U9s and I’m looking forward to seeing their transition into the more competitive Friday night competition 

next year.  

In the Sydney Juniors Competition, for our U10s to U12s, our eight teams experienced mixed results. Whilst most 

were competitive, some had a long season on the wrong end of the scoreboard and full credit must go to the players 

and Coaches who hung in there for some serious ‘character building’. 

Whether our current U12 teams continue next year with the Eagles, be part of the Myrtle Green Warriors or 

concentrate on school sport we wish them all the best and hope they carry some great memories from their time at the 

Club. Their time on the recently completed, and always successful, NZ tour will have added to those memories. 

Congratulations to our players in the U10s, 11s and 12s who were selected for representative duties with Randwick. 

From trialling to training and travelling, it’s no small commitment and from all reports they were a credit to the Club. 

Good luck to those who’ve put their hands up for the Academy activities across the summer months and a big thanks 

to our Coaches and Managers, past and present, who volunteer to help with both of these programs under the 

seasoned hand of Jim Dubos. 

This season saw a first for the Club with the establishment of the position of Club Coaching Coordinator. This position 

has been discussed at Committee level for the past couple of seasons and the intent is for the role to provide support 

for the team coaches and some consistency in approach to skills development across the teams. It was determined 

that we would trial it this year and we were fortunate enough to gain the services of Craig Morrison who brought with 

him both a high level of relevant experience and a knowledge of, and connection with, the Club. Reports the 

Committee have heard have been positive as we review how to make the role as effective as possible next season. 

As always, we are thankful for the ongoing support of our sponsors whose contributions take some of the burden from 

the many duties of any volunteer run entity.  

Many may not realise that both Randwick Juniors and Sydney Juniors are, largely, volunteer run organisations, 

without which we would not have a competition to play in, so we thank them for their efforts.  

To the, often unsung, work horses who are our Team Managers, thanks for your efforts. It’s probably only another 

Manager who knows how much work you do and we are fortunate enough to have some great ones. 

Lastly, for everyone who helped make the Eagles’ Social Night, once again, the hottest ticket on the Eastern Suburbs’ 

social calendar, take a bow. From the organisers on the Committee to our Treasurer, Richard Schall, and the 
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Hummers, who donated their time and talent, to all who made an incredible effort to dress up and get into the spirit - 

many thanks. I can’t wait to see how we top it next year. 

Wishing everyone a great summer and safe return in 2017. 

Go the Eagles. 

Tony Sheppard 
President 
Clovelly Junior Rugby Football Club 

  

Clovelly Juniors at the SFS 

 

Hamish Caple 
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Galloping Green Waratah Ned Hanigan helped out with the 2016 Awards 
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Randwick U10s 

Coogee Junior Rugby Report 

 

 
Well that caps off another great season for Seahorse Rugby, highlighted by our Mighty Minis (6-9s) and 

Tenacious Juniors (10-12s). This year saw some great ball sharing and slick support play from all our 

teams, coupled with great tagging, tackling and cleaning out. Improved scrummaging, rucking and mauling 

should also get a mention. 

 

Thank you to all the Coaches and Managers for all of your endless support and guidance for our young 

Wallaby Wannabes. The level of skills and preparation, behind the scenes, was a real credit to you all this 

year.  Several Junior teams made the ‘B’ and ‘C’ Grand Finals, but special mention should be made 

regarding Kelly and John Kennedy’s U11 Whites for being undefeated all season, although sadly defeated 

by arch enemy South Coogee in the ‘A’ division Grand Final. Watch for the Seahorse revenge in 2017!! 

Thanks to all of the parents who navigated their way around Sydney, in a trance, to the smell of coffee, 

bacon, eggs and BBQ! Your positive encouragement and passionate support made sure that all our teams 

lifted to their potentials. 
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A great big thanks to our fundraising committee this year, including Jacquie Folsom, Jo Habler, Natasha 

Byrd, Rachelle Scott and team; an awesome achievement from the team, with special mention to Bec 

Waugh for helping secure the Coogee Bay Hotel for our raffles each week. These girls made this year’s 

Brisbane Tour much more accessible for the U10s and 11s, top effort!  

A very special mention must be made of The Wrap editor Mark Elizondo, who patiently encouraged teams 

to enter their weekly input about their games. Without Mark’s efforts our great magazine would have sadly 

fallen away, after 50 years of tradition. Mark has had his own private battles with health recently and we 

wish Mark and his family all the best.  

Thanking you to Marianne Perrottet who was able to tidy up our website. That whole web design language 

is so foreign, we don’t how Marianne does it, so well done. Great support too was offered by Gary Chen as 

our kit manager, in what can be a confusing and tricky role at times.  

Well done and thanks also goes to Phil Elkington too for always being present at the Club. Phil’s words of 

wisdom to the players is always valued. 

To Rachelle Scott, our Registrar, who managed to fit SJRU’s program, ‘My Rugby’ into her new life as a 

mum, deserves a round of applause! An incredible effort with a difficult program  and minimal support, 

taking  multi-tasking to a new level. Go easy gents! 

Many thanks go to Coaching Coordinator, Simon Thorp for his tireless efforts, input and support. Simon’s 

ideas for the Club have always been full of merit, and worthy of discussion. 

To Alison Garratt, many, many thanks for your unwavering support these past two years. Alison always 

gave her heart and soul for our Club and nothing was ever a problem, even in difficult times. Thanks also to 

your family support from Jack and Phil, who were ever present.  That said, thanks to all the families who 

supported their committee members this year. 

That brings us to the South Brisbane Magpies Tour at the end of the year. Yet another great success after 

42 years of tradition. The Brisbane Tour Committee picked up where the General Fundraising Committee 

left off raising a little extra to ensure all players went for free.  

The team comprising of Kelly Kennedy, Patricia O’Keefe, Chloe Sawyer, Karen and Mark Elizondo, Belinda 

Sullivan, Andy Prior, Simone  Smith, Mark Doull and Coaches, took our U10s and 11s teams slipping and 

sliding around Wet N Wild before dropping the players off to their billets and families. We were then hosted 

by the Souths Committee and parents to some real Aussie cuisine with beverages. Thank you to all the tour 

sponsors also, couldn’t have done it without you. 

On Saturday, parents chose to see the sights, visit family or join Panda’s Tour and Pub Crawl, led by the 

famous Panda himself, allowed out of the zoo for the day. Everyone made it home to sleep safely in bed (or 

cafe) with Sunday’s excitement of four great games of Rugby between the two brother clubs to follow. 

Parents continued to remain well hydrated thanks to the brilliant hospitality and it was ‘Happy Birthday 

Warwick Waugh’, who continued to challenge loving brother-in-law, Owen Finegan, to Olympic style 

events...A Birthday Boy victory! 

As the sun faded, the presentation saw all the boys get Souths beanies, whilst we presented the Dargin 

family with a framed, assorted, tribute to the great Richard ‘Dick’ Dargin, who coached both of our black 
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and white clubs. Coogee then boarded the bus with the Richard ‘Dick’ Dargin Memorial Shield for a very 

lazy and snoozy trip home. 

The feedback from the hosting billet families was nothing short of excellent, highlighted by the good 

manners shown by our boys. The joy on the faces of our own parents was also great to see, as they had all 

had such a relaxing time away from the rat race of Sydney. Planning has already started for our hosting 

duties next year when Souths come to Sydney with their U11s and 12s. 

Special thanks go out to our sponsors, below, as we could not function without your support: 

Craig Sewell - Mint 360 Property; 

Patrick Lyons - Coogee Bay Physio; 

Dease Henwood - FI-TA ;  

AMart Sports Randwick; 

Little Jack Corner Coogee; 

Champ Mouthguards. 

A big thanks to Craig Sewell for going around again in 2017. 

Sincere apologies if I have forgotten any ‘thank yous’ to anyone. 

Thanks to my wife Kass and the kids for your patience supporting my role with the club. 

Time for all to get out the sunscreen, hat and swimmers and hit the beach…... 

Have a wonderful, safe, Happy Christmas and Festive New Year and see you all in 2017. 

Best of luck to all of our current U12s boys who will be heading off to other ventures next year. Thank you 

for all of your contributions and commitments to the Club. 

Remember… 

Once a Seahorse, Always a Seahorse !! 

Yours in Rugby, 

Adam Diffin    President 
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Maroubra Juniors Report 

 

The Maroubra Missiles Junior Rugby Union Club enjoyed a fun and successful 2016 season fielding 

six teams in the U6, U7, U8, U10 and U12 age groups. That’s an increase of two teams which has 

been a great result for the Club.  

Our players had a fantastic season with two U6 teams having a fun time making friends and learning 

the sport, the U7 and U8 sides winning more than they lost, the U10 side finishing 7th and getting 

through to the Plate semifinals and the U12s finishing a well-deserved third and playing in the finals 

series.  

The Minis teams had some great experiences running out for the pre-match entertainment at the 

mighty Wicks at Coogee Oval. The boys loved the attention and hopefully we’ll see some of them go 

on to play for the Galloping Greens!! The Minis also had a wonderful day of rugby at the Dukes Gala 

Day at the end of the season – special thanks goes to Billy Hodgetts!  

The U10s played their first year of junior rugby with home and away games across Sydney. They also 

had their opportunity to try out for representative rugby. The boys did very well with Jacob Edwards, 

Conor Joyce and Jonas Dowling all making the U10 rep sides and doing the Randwick district proud.  

Like all clubs, sponsorship is extremely important and allows the Club to buy player uniforms, provide 

training gear such as balls and tackle pads, train parents to be effective coaches and to provide an 

equity fund for low income families. We are particularly proud of the equity fund as it ensures that cost 

is not a barrier for local kids to participate in rugby. A big thank you goes to our sponsors Benny and 

The Pets, Eastern Suburbs Smash Repairs, TrophyLand, BH Ducting and NSW Contracting. 

Last, but not least, a big thank you goes to our committee and parents who have attended meetings, 

staffed barbecues, sold endless raffle tickets and more importantly bringing their kids to training and 

games each week. 

All are looking forward to a bigger and better, mighty Maroubra Missiles in 2016!!! 

Joel Johnson 

Secretary 
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Tony Shaw (President Maroubra Missiles), Ben Achison (Major Sponsor Benny & The Pets) 

Jack Gibbens-Johnson, Hugo Nicholson, Jack Muckian 
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South Coogee Junior RUFC “Red Devils” Report 

 

Firstly I would like to thank the South Coogee Committee. The support they have given the 
Club and myself over the year has been amazing, this is not just limited to canteen duty 
and game days but all that is involved in running a successful junior rugby club. 
 
A big thankyou also to the Coaches, Managers and helpers of all our teams from U6s to 
U12s  inclusive, who have helped make this year a success It is such a rewarding 
experience being able to help our up and coming sporting superstars. 
 
This year we had four of our teams make the final series with our U11s Red team taking 
out the premiership in a wet hard fought game against Coogee Seahorses, it was a great 
game from both sides and I was very happy to be there to watch our boys all come 
together as a team and take out the cup. 
 
I would also like to say a big thankyou to our two major sponsors this season who were 
Marnie Seinor McGrath Real Estate and Don Small Goods, we are very thankful for your 
continued support over this year and all the previous years also. We look forward to having 
you on board next year. 
 
I am looking forward to another great season in 2017 and I am sure that our little club will 
keep growing and building in numbers. 
 
Heather Marshall 
South Coogee President   
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            Jed Westaway and Indy Gibson 

 
South Coogee juniors 

 

     
 
 

 
Randwick Myrtle Green Warriors 

 

Randwick Myrtle Green Warriors (MGW) is a relatively new club targeting U13-U16 players who want to 

continue playing club rugby on the ‘Pathway to Randwick Colts’. 

In what was an outstanding result in only our 3rd season all MGW U13s made the finals and the U15 and 

U16s took part in Grand Finals. 

Our MGW U13s coached by Craig Bell and Stu Donaldson also reached the Semi Finals however went 

down to a pretty handy Southern Barbarians side. The 13s really developed as a squad this season, with 

Wallaby and Wicks legend Simon Poidevin running the water and leading the boys in McNamara's band 

after each win. They also took part in the “Coffs 10s” which was a great rugby tour and bonding experience 

for the boys. 
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The U15s coached by Keiron O’Byrne and Mark Mellick and mentored by Jeff Sayle, showed true guts as 

they found themselves down 29 nil playing a super-sized Canterbury outfit. In true Randwick spirit they dug 

in as a team to win the 2nd half convincingly 3 tries to 1. Our 16s coached by Lancelot Tasipale came up 

against a strong and disciplined Lane Cove outfit, but can still hold their heads up on a good season  

including making the GF.  Whilst GF results didn't go our way, there was true Randwick club spirit and 

courage on display by the bucketload at Rat Park. To see the MGW 16s form a tunnel for their 15s club 

mates as they left the field is what Wicks rugby is all about.  

Sincere appreciation also goes to our Foundation Sponsor Mellick Wealth Management, Coogee Sports 

Club and Mitre 10 Kingsford for sponsorship this season.  The valued support went a long way in getting 

the kids on the field. Special thanks also go to Jim Dubos and David Caple and family for their tireless 

efforts in keeping the Randwick MGW junior rugby dream alive.  

Lastly the Senior Club is now offering our MGW U16s a “Transition to Colts” program providing the 

opportunity for the boys to go through a full Colts off-season, training with the senior club then playing in 

the Sunday SJRU Opens competition. This program will allow players to upskill and access vital strength 

and conditioning, the direct result should be more local players delivered into the senior system "Wicks 

ready".  I would like to thank Ian and Tom Kellaway and Travis Partridge for supporting this very important 

retention initiative.  

 That's the MGW report for this year; the pathway to Randwick Colts will continue in 2017! 

Jamie Johnson 

 

Myrtle Green Warriors at the Coffs 10s 
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Randwick U11 Whites 

 

Randwick U12s  
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Randwick Juniors Report 

2016 saw once again an amazing number of juniors take the fields in a variety of competitions across age 

groups 6 to16 years. Randwick Juniors are extremely appreciative of every volunteer across all village 

clubs who man the BBQ each week. Without their generous support the clubs would need to find other 

means to raise funds to help get our kids on the field each week. Special thanks is sent out from all junior 

village clubs, parents and players to the Randwick Rugby Foundation. Without this ongoing support we 

would not have any kids playing rugby in this district. 

Minis  

The Randwick / Easts combined minis comp was once again a fantastic success. All age groups from U6 

through to U9 were well represented. 

U6 had 12 teams, U7 had 10 teams, U8 had 14 teams and U9, 13 teams. We experimented a little this year 

and allowed each age group to have up to two more players on the field at any time which in turn gave all 

of the players more game time and most teams took up the opportunity (all teams were still forced to match 

the opposition numbers so there were no advantages).  A big thanks goes to the SJRU team for facilitating 

the draw for the competition. We ended at v.4 so that tells you what a great job they did for us. 

Juniors 

The juniors compete in a Sydney-wide competition consisting of a Friday night and Sunday fixtures. The 

Friday competition is mostly conducted at Latham and Nagle Parks as both locations have two grounds.  

 Friday comp 

This competition consists of teams from the Randwick, Easts, Canterbury, West Harbour and 

Petersham areas and most age groups consisted of more than eight teams allowing for both cup 

and plate finals. Quite a bit of silverware was kept in the Randwick District once again this year, 

setting us up for a strong future. 

 Sunday Competition 
Unfortunately for junior rugby last year saw the end of the all-conquering Clovelly Eagles U16 team. 

This left the Randwick Myrtle Green Warriors flying the solo flag for the Randwick Juniors area. With 

a slow start to registration Jamie Johnson advised we were lucky to get any teams signed up which 

is a great concern to all in the catchment area. Two weeks prior to the competition start however we 

saw a huge turn out to training in the U13, 15 and 16 age groups thanks to the mighty efforts of the 

coaching staff. If it were not for the coaches there would not have been any junior teams to enter 

into the Sunday comp from Randwick juniors. Well done to all concerned.  After a great year for the 

Club they ended up with two teams runners up and one making the first round semis. 

Representative  

We were fortunate enough to again submit two U10 and two U11 teams to this year’s development 

competitions. All four teams went through their respective comps almost undefeated. If we can keep these 

players in rugby we will have strong prospects ahead. With Jim Dubos’ hard work and the current crop of 

talented coaches coming through we are very excited for the future. 

At the championships on the June long weekend we were only able to field teams in the U12 and U16 age 

groups. The U12s went deep into the comp but were not fortunate enough to go all the way after a strong 

showing. Our U16 team was our MGW U16 team. With no other clubs carrying a team the boys switched 

gear from MGW to Randwick and although beaten by obvious representative teams in all games the boys 

put up a mighty effort putting points on otherwise undefeated teams. With the boys backing up to play in the 

opens competition next year hopefully they will go a little further at the championships.  
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Randwick Junior Rugby Academy 

Now in its 5th year the Academy is a benchmark for all other districts. None can compete with ours and we 

have received requests from Easts players to participate at our academy this year. As a result of Jim 

Dubos’ commitment and strategic approach we have a range of coaches from clubs to ex-Wallabies 

coaching our kids on the finer points of rugby. The real mark of success for this development program is 

having academy members graduate to all levels of the colts program and also to the Australian Schools 

Barbarian team in 2016. Keep an eye out for Will Harrison to be in the Australian School Boys 1st XV in 

2017. 

2016 sees the introduction of our girls into the Academy training alongside the boys. We look forward to 

some future representatives coming out of this group. 

There are a number of people and businesses that have contributed to the Juniors this year and I would 

like to acknowledge their support as without it we would not have this opportunity for our junior players 

Thanks go to:- 

 Chris Dunn, Juniors Treasurer for keeping us afloat and the books balanced. Also for his liaison with 
the Foundation and seniors. 

 The Randwick Foundation for the ongoing investment in our juniors with every cent going directly 
into running costs for the juniors participation. 

 Our young band of junior referees turning up every Saturday morning to give our minis the best 
experience possible. Some of our referees come down to referee just one game and then go off to 
play school sports. Without that effort more coaches would be refereeing in addition to coaching 
their teams on a Saturday morning. 

 Our generous sponsors including Bakker Built, Traffic Plan Professionals, Mambo, Baby Boxes and 
Phoenix Broodmares. Without this valuable support we wouldn’t have training grounds and rep 
gear.  

 Jim Dubos for his tireless efforts with our representative and development program, and also for his 
work with the Junior Academy.  

 And last but not least to all the Village Clubs and their band of merry volunteers for making the 
season such an easy one for me. 

 

David Caple  2016 President  

 

Hayden Pomare - MGW Inaugural Simon Poidevin player awardee 
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RANDWICK RUGBY JUNIOR ACADEMY 2016/2017 

“We are a proud club at Randwick Rugby. We are proud of our history, our achievements and our 

hard-earned international reputation. We pride ourselves on our record of elite level players, 

captains, administrators and coaches. We are proud of our junior clubs who offer and support the 

introduction of our great game to countless numbers of children. 

In recent years we have taken pride in yet another jewel in the myrtle green crown – The Randwick 

Rugby Junior Academy. This group under the stewardship of Jim Dubos supported by a large 

group of coaches, many of whom have worn the myrtle green of Randwick, the sky blue of the 

Waratahs and the gold of the Wallabies must be the envy of every sporting club in Australia. 

No Academy, anywhere in the world, could be better supported or administered! 

I thank you and salute you”                

Bob Dwyer, President of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club 
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HISTORY 

Towards the end of the 2012 season a committee comprising Simon Poidevin, Stephen Hoiles and Jim 

Dubos set up the Academy structure. 

The committee’s goals were to: 

a. Put a structure in place to up-skill our Randwick Village Club’s players 

b. Improve Randwick Village Club’s performances 

c. Increase fitness levels for Randwick Village Club players 

d. Improve Randwick Junior representative coach’s skill level by pooling the expertise from individual 

coaches so that the coaches have a broader knowledge of the game 

e. Have varied off field training sessions in order to teach Academy players how to cross train 

ACADEMY PLAYER NUMBERS 2012 TO 2016 

The Academy in its first year in 2012 limited the number of players to 80 aged between 12 to 16 years of 

age. In 2013 the age of the players was lowered to include players who were 11 years of age in the 

following year. The number of players in the Academy increased over the years. In the 2015/16 years 130 

players were in the Academy with 15 coaches. 

PLAYERS WHO HAVE GRADUATED FROM THE ACADEMY 

Over the years many players have graduated from the Academy. The following players trained with the 

Academy over the years and their achievements in 2016 are: 

a. Will Harrison NSW CCC/NSW 2nd XV/Australian Schools Barbarians XV 

b. Tyrone Taukamo Newington College 1st XV, GPS 1st XV,NSW 2nd XV, Australian Schools 

Barbarians XV 

c. Tom Serhon Newington College 1st XV,GPS 2nd XV, Combined Independent States/Australian 

Schools Barbarians XV 

d. Christian Poidevin Newington College 1st XV/Combined GPS XV 

e. Ryley Angles-Cork St Joseph College 1st XV,2nd XV, Combined GPS XV 

f. Patrick Pelligrini NSW CCC/Combined Independent Schools 

g. Matt Stead Trinity College 1st XV/CAS 2nd XV 

h. Kordell Payne Trinity College 1st XV, NSW Gold Squad 

i. Charlie Burnett Scots College 1st XV/2nd XV 

j. Ben Baker Scots College 2nd XV 

k. Nathan Vougdis – NSW AICES 1st XV 

l. Nathan Shepherd St Andrews Cathedral School 1st XV 

m. Justin De La Cruz St Andrews Cathedral School 1st XV 

n. Marco Bell Waverley College 1st XV/2nd XV 

o. Zac Carr Waverley College 1st XV/CAS 1st XV 

p. Pat Clifton Waverley College 1st XV 

q. Ben Donaldson Waverley College 1st XV/CAS 2nd XV 

r. Joel Ellis Waverley College 1stXV 

s. Latham James Waverley College 1st XV 

t. Will McCormick Waverley College 1st XV 

u. Daniel Szabo Waverley College 1st XV,2nd XV 

v. Finn Wright Waverley College 1st XV/CAS 2nd XV 
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ACADEMY PLAYERS NUMBERS 2016/2017 

For the 2016/2017 years the Academy has increased its numbers to 160 players including for the first time 

12 girls. The Academy for these years will have: 

 145 boys in ten colour squads 

 12 girls in an under 13 squad 

 21 coaches 

Training will be held on Wednesday nights at Bicentennial Reserve at Phillip Bay and Saturday sessions 

will be held at Coogee Beach, Clovelly Beach, South Coogee Stairs and Wanda Sands Hills. 

ACADEMY COACHES FOR 2016/2017 

The Academy is very fortunate to call upon the following coaches to coach and train the players: 

Simon Poidevin, Owen Finegan, Jeff Sayle, Geoff James, Stu Donaldson, Vili Taukamo, John Kennedy, 

Adam Diffin, Josh Smith, Iain McAusland, Pieter Engelbrecht, Steve Robbie, Danny Grant, Rod Willey, 

Craig Bell, Erich Fiala, Kurt Vilo, Peter Scott, Lancelot Tasipale, Bec Waugh and Jim Dubos, with guest 

appearances from Mario Ledesma. 

Jim Dubos 

 

2016 Development Report 

January  

• The 2nd half of our Academy Program resumes. 

• 150 boys and participated under 15 coaches. 

February 

• Village Club registrations 

• Academy Coaches post-Xmas bash. Money for this event was donated by the Academy parents as 

a thank you to the coaches for their dedication during the summer.  

March 

• Academy BBQ Presentation for 2015 / 16.  

• Registrations for age rep teams U10 - U16. 

April 

• Rep coaches and managers selected. 

• Rep trials commence. 

• Club competition commences. 

May 

• Rep teams selected and announced. 

• Rep training and trials commence 
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• The 5th Annual Academy / Rep lunch was held at Coogee Legion Club with 193 people attending.  

June 

• Randwick entered teams in the U10,11,12 and 16 age groups at the NSWJRU State 

Championships 

July 

• Year 5 - 6 ten a side tournament held at Latham Park. 

• 10 teams, divided into two divisions, attended the tournament playing 30 games. 

• Pre tournament training was offered to all teams with 29 training sessions completed before, after 

and during school time. 

August 

• Year 3 - 4 ten a side tournament held at Latham Park. 

• 14 teams participated. 

• 36 Pre tournament training sessions were conducted. 

September 

• Village Clubs finals series were completed. 

• Players from the U10 - U15 were invited to register for the 2016 / 17 Academy. 

October 

• Academy Coaches were appointed. (We don't advertise for coaches. Coaches are head hunted to 

ensure we retain our high standard in this department.) 

• Village Clubs held their presentation days. 

• U13 played in a Tens Tournament in Coffs Harbour. 

November 

• Academy information night 2nd November. The 2016 / 17 season features a program for 173 boys 

and girls (girls coming into the program for the first time) with 23 coaches. 

• Academy program commences 9th November 

December 

• Academy breaks for Xmas 

• Academy 1st term BBQ and presentation day. 

  

My thanks to the following people for their support during the season:- 

• David Caple (President) and Chris Dunn (Treasurer) from Randwick Juniors. 

• The Randwick Rugby Foundation for their ongoing  support with our Academy. 
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• The Academy coaches for making the Academy the success it is. (To quote Bob Dwyer “the best 

Junior coaching program in Australia”.)    

• The Village Club Presidents and their committees. 

• Doug Eggins in organising the Academy / Rep Lunch. 

• Rod Willey for being MC at the Lunch. 

• The 193 Academy supporters who attended the lunch. 

• Coogee Legion Club for hosting the Lunch. 

• The Rep teams coaches and managers. 

• Clarissa Luxford for her support in promoting Junior Rugby by way of the Randwick newsletter. 

• Nick Ryan and Travis Partridge for their support.  

• Anne Clerc Johnson for her help with the rep gear (ordering and fitting). 

• The teachers from the schools that enter the tournaments we run for their cooperation. 

• Randwick City Council for supporting the tournaments. 

• The parents of the Academy Squad for their generosity in donating to the Coaches Xmas function. 

Jim Dubos 

Randwick Rugby Junior Development 

 

 

Congratulations Jim Dubos on being awarded  

“Services to Junior Sport”  

by Randwick City Council 



70 
 

 

 

Roscoe Fay Trophy - Highest Pointscorer  

Andrew Deegan (Randwick - 210 points) with Ken Catchpole 

This year's Roscoe Fay Trophy winner was Randwick flyhalf Andrew Deegan, who suitably received his 

award from NSW Waratahs assistant coach and kicking aficionado Chris Malone. The prolific Wicks boot 

closed out his season as the competition's highest point scorer with seven tries, 53 conversions, 20 penalty 

goals and three field goals for a total of 210 competition points. A former Australian U20s representative, 

Deegan played a crucial role in navigating his team's on-field performance throughout the year and 

demonstrated a good sense of tactical play as well as prowess in both attack and defence. 

 

Eddie Jones joined the Galloping Greens at Latham Park for training  
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc 

2016 Treasurers Report 

 

The attached Profit & Loss report and Balance Sheet for 2016 shows a significantly improved and satisfying 

operating profit of $15,664 (2015 Loss ($68,234). 

The Club produced a Net Financial Profit after depreciation ($10,000) of $5,664 (2015 Loss ($78,234) The 

Club remains in a strong financial position with cumulative retained funds including reserves, now standing 

at $174,834. 

The Club’s improved performance in 2016 is the culmination of increased revenues from sponsorships and 

net fundraising activities including the newly established Scholarship Fund introduced at the corporate 

breakfast in April thus assisting to alleviate our reliance on the Rugby Foundation over the last 3 years.  

 2016 2015 2014 

Sponsorship - cash $342,500 $274,000 $159,640 

Foundation  $65,000 $100,000 $200,000 

Grants ARU/NSWRU nil nil $39,000 

Net Fundraising profit $73,119 $57,759 $31,847 

  

On-field performance continues to improve and this was reflected in our increased crowds and subsequent 

income from gate and concessions (food & beverage). This year saw the Club partner with Field to Fork to 

provide a much demanded improvement in our food offering. Net income from gate and concessions 

improved by 24.5% and 68.5% respectively. The rebuild and use of the Senior Citizen Centre on the 

western side of Coogee Oval provided the Club with a first rate facility to entertain and service its sponsors 

for the first time. We thank the Randwick Council for its ongoing support both on and off the field. 

Increased costs associated with the hiring of this facility and the servicing of sponsors will prove to be 

invaluable in attracting new and maintaining existing sponsors. 

Costs generally have been held and are in line with previous years. Some timing differences relating to 

receipt of invoices for Latham Park actually even costs out over 2015/16 ($16,682 v $16,073).  Coaching 

costs while elevated this year are in line with the costs of 2014 and are the norm for a club operating 7 

teams in the SRU Shute Shield / Colts competitions while using part time consultants. As foreshadowed in 

last year’s report scholarship costs have increased but total player operation costs are down following tight 

budget controls put into place by the Director of Rugby. The Club continues to lead the way in player 

welfare with the introduction of ground breaking medical analysis of on and off field head trauma incidents. 

Next year will see the introduction of further advancement in analysing and controlling player soft tissue 

injuries with the introduction of the IT supported Baseline monitoring system. Costs associated with these 

programs are and will be beneficial to the welfare of players and the reduction in long term injury incidents. 

We thank the Rugby Foundation for its continued support and contribution throughout the district in 2016 in 

what has been a difficult year for financial investment. The RRF provided the seniors with $65,000 and the 

junior body with $30,000. 

The Board thanks our loyal sponsors and donors for their continued financial support. Special thanks go to 

those who contributed monies to the scholarship fund and individually donated money to the Club’s newly 

established tax deductible “Randwick Rugby Development Fund” through the administrative vehicle 

“Australian Sports Foundation”. 
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Without this ongoing support the Club would not be able to invest in the rugby youth of the future and 

continue with our new found success on the field. The club also receives unreserved support from its many 

loyal volunteers and supporters, representative players, coaches, support staff and other well-wishers 

internal and external to the club. Thanks go to ALL for your support, as this great Club would not be able to 

function without its many volunteers and supporters. 

I recommend to you for approval the attached Profit and Loss report, Balance Sheet and Annual report for 

the 12 months, financial year ending 30th September 2016. 

Ian R Bonnette 

Honorary Treasurer 

Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc    

 
 
 

 
Former team mates Eddie Jones and Joe Picone 
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2016 Financial Reports 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

Income and Expenditure Statement for the Period Ended 30 September 2016 

 Note 
2016  

$ 

2015 

$ 

Income  

Sponsorship  2 562,500 529,000 

Revenue - Coogee Oval                               3 117,748 99,430 

Player Subscriptions  50,340 46,434 

Fundraising Functions  143,328 132,967 

Merchandise Revenue  9,258 40 

Interest Received  1,621 1,409 

Other income  4 6,000 10,810 

Total Income  890,795 820,090 

   

Expenses  

Coogee Oval  5 28,502 51,752 

Latham Park  6 25,101 18,812 

Ground Hire Other  - 1,807 

Player Operation Costs  7 224,298 252,141 

Coaching Costs  8 106,204 77,408 

Marketing & Fundraising - Direct  9 70,209 75,208 

Marketing - Sponsorship Servicing  10 25,651 20,084 

Merchandise Costs  1,741 - 

Sponsorship Contra Costs  11 155,000 155,000 

Administration Expenses  12 238,425 236,112 

Depreciation  13 10,000 10,000 

Total Expenses  885,131 898,324 

   

Operating Surplus/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Items  5,664 (78,234) 

 

Operating Profit/(Loss) after Extraordinary Items 5,664 (78,234) 

   

Retained Funds - Opening  142,058 220,292 

Surplus/(loss) Available for Appropriation  5,664 (78,234) 

Retained Funds at End of Year  147,722 142,058 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2016 

 NOTE 2016 

$ 

2015 

$  

Current Assets  

Cash  1 202,351 107,342 

Trade and Other Receivables 14 74,847 121,813 

Prepayments   4,007 - 

GST Paid   10,645 10,086 

Total Current Assets  291,850 239,241 

   

 

Property, Plant and Equipment  15 9,679 19,679 

Total Non-Current Assets  9,679 19,679 

   

Total Assets  301,529 258,920 

   

 

Payables  16 84,150 61,079 

GST on supplies   18,160 15,825 

Provisions  17 24,385 12,846 

Total Current Liabilities  126,695 89,750 

   

Total Liabilities  126,695 89,750 

   

Net Assets  174,834 169,170 

   

 

Accumulated Funds  147,722 142,058 

Reserves  18 27,112 27,112 

Total Equity  174,834 169,170 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 September 2016  

   

Retained Earnings  Reserves  Total  

$  $  $  

Balance as at 30th September 2014 220,292 27,112 247,404 

Profit/Transfers  (78,234) - (78,234) 

Balance as at 30th September 2015  142,058 27,112 169,170 

Profit/Transfers 5,664 - 5,664 

Balance as at 30th September 2016  147,722 27,112 174,834 

    

  

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 September 2015  

2016  2015 

$  $  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  

Cash Receipts From Operations  780,582 705,768 

Cash Payments in the Course of Operations  (687,194) (686,176) 

Interest Received 1,621 1,408 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating 
Activities  

95,009 21,000 

   

 

Payments for Property Plant Equipment  - (2,598) 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities  - (2,598) 

   

 

Provisions and Reserves  - - 

Repayment of Loan  - - 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities  - - 

   

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash Held  95,009 18,402 

Cash at the Beginning of the Year  107,342 88,940 

Cash at the End of the Year  202,351 107,342 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows  

2016  2015  

$  $  

 Reconciliation of Cash  

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled to 
the related item in the statement of financial position as follows:  

Bank - Seniors  174,628 14,091 

Cash Management  25,193 90,721 

Macquarie Bank  2,530 2,530 

Total Cash  202,351 107,342 

   

 

Surplus/(loss) from Ordinary Activities  5,664 (78,234) 

 

Depreciation and Impairment Charge  10,000 10,000 

 

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 46,966 42,086 

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables  23,071 32,854 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (4,566) 12,001 

Increase/(Decrease) in GST Payable  2,335 (291) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  11,539 2,584 

Cash Flows from Operations  95,009  21,000 
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2016 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 September 2016 

 

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies  

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales.  

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity. The financial report 
has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Association Incorporation Act 
New South Wales and the following Australian Accounting Standards:  

AAS 5 : Materiality  

AAS 8: Events Occurring After Reporting date  

No other applicable Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied.  

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and 
does not take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current 
valuations of non-current assets.  

The following material accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless 
otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report.  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is a tax exempt body  

(b) Fixed Assets  

Plant & Equipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and equipment 
is reviewed annually by the Association to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount 
from those assets.  

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to 
the association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

(c) Investments  

Non-current investments are measured on the cost basis.  

The carrying amount of investments is reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure it is not in 
excess of the recoverable amount of these investments. The recoverable amount is assessed 
from the quoted market value for shares in listed companies, if applicable, or such other criteria 
as determined by the Committee.  

(d) Employee Entitlements  

Provision is made for the Associations liability for employee entitlements arising from services 
rendered by employees to balance date. Employee entitlements expected to be settled within 
one year together with entitlements arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave 
which will be settled after one year, have been measured at their nominal amount. Other 
employee entitlements payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those entitlements.  

Contributions are made by the Association to an employee superannuation fund and are charged 
as expenses when incurred.  
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2016 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (cont). 

 

 (e) Cash  

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, at banks or on 
deposit.  

(f) Revenue  

Revenue from the receipt of grants is recognised by the stipulated dates laid down by the 
supplier of the funds; revenue from the supply of services is taken into account when the service 
is undertaken; revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to 
customers.  

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets.  

Dividend revenue is recognised when the association has established that it has a right to 
receive a dividend.  

 

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part 
of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are 
shown inclusive of GST.  
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2016 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

2016  2015  

$  $  

NOTE 2 - Sponsorship  

Sponsorship Cash  342,500 274,000 

Randwick Foundation Grant  65,000 100,000 

Contra Sponsorship  155,000 155,000 

Total Sponsorship  562,500 529,000 

   

NOTE 3 - Coogee Oval 

Gate 58,750 47,183 

Concessions 58,998 52,247 

Total Coogee Oval 117,748 99,430 

NOTE 4- Other Income  

Miscellaneous  - 7,810 

Prize Money (ARU Sevens) 6,000 3,000 

Total Other Income  6,000 10,810 

   

NOTE 5- Coogee Oval  

Rental  6,993 13,924 

Match Day Costs - Gate 

                            - Concessions                                             

2,309 

19,200 

7,816 

30,012 

Total Coogee Oval  28,502 51,752 

   

NOTE 6- Latham Park  

Rental  19,882 12,873 

Repairs & Maintenance    - Field 

                                         - Gym 

1,796 

3,423 

3,260 

2,679 

Total Latham Park  25,101 18,812 

 

NOTE 7 - Player Operation Costs  

Player Expenses  16,960 25,886 

Footballs & Equipment  1,878 6,198 

Insurance  10,691 10,691 

Laundry & Cleaning 4,008 5,662 
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2016 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Medical Fees - Doctors/Physio   27,463 27,350 

Medical Tape  17,015 11,862 

Player Rewards  4,196 4,808 

Scholarships 69,997 54,697 

Sundries  137 2,637 

Transport 3,901 4,495 

Travel and Accommodation  - 11,295 

Tournament Expenses  - 5,137 

Uniforms  68,052 81,423 

Total Player Operation Costs  224,298 252,141 

 

NOTE 8- Coaching  

Motor Vehicle Expenses  4,400 944 

Schools & Junior Clubs  540 1,192 

Trainers & Coaching Consultants 84,759 59,954 

Videos & Analysis 16,505 15,318 

Total Coaching Costs  106,204 77,408 

   

NOTE 9- Marketing Costs  

Functions  70,209 75,208 

Total Marketing Costs  70,209 75,208 

   

NOTE 10 - Sponsorship Servicing Expenses  

Support 24,319 15,570 

Tickets  1,332 4,514 

Total Sponsorship Servicing Expenses 25,651 20,084 

  

NOTE 11 - Contra Sponsorship Expenses  

Contra Sponsorship Expenses  155,000 155,000 

   

 

Accounting Fees 8,000 8,727 

Audit Fees  1,800 1,900 
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2016 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Bad Debts 7,727 12,700 

Bank Fees 1,391 1,961 

Employment Costs  183,463 173,072 

Insurances  9,016 10,595 

IT and Communications  2,728 2,753 

Leave Provisions  11,538 4,385 

Motor Vehicle Expenses  4,469 7,127 

Printing Postage & Stationery  3,081 6,413 

General Expenses  2,123 3,116 

Subscriptions 869 1,082 

Telephone 2,220 2,281 

Total Administration Expenses  238,425 236,112 

   

NOTE 13 Deprecation  

General Depreciation  10,000 10,000 

Total Depreciation  10,000 10,000 

   

NOTE 14 - Trade Debtors and Other Debtors  

Trade Debtors  

Accrued income 

74,358 

489 

121,163 

650 

Total Trade and Other Debtors  74,847 121,813 

 

NOTE 15- Property Plant and Equipment  

First Aid Room at Cost  8,094 8,094 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (7,409) (6,617) 

Total First Aid Room  685 1,477 

   

Plant & Equipment - at Cost  43,234 43,234 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (37,942) (32,981) 

Total Plant & Equipment  5,292 10,253 

   

Furniture & Fittings - at Cost  18,499 18,499 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (18,499) (18,499) 

Total Furniture & Fittings  - - 
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2016 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

  ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 
 

Gymnasium Equipment at Cost  33,393 33,393 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (29,691) (25,444) 

Total Gymnasium Equipment  3,702 7,949 

   

Sponsors Stand at Cost  7,254 7,254 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (7,254) (7,254) 

Total Sponsors Stand  - - 

   

Total Plant and Equipment  9,679 19,679 

 

NOTE 16-Payables  

Trade Creditors  19,232 24,018 

Payg Withholding Tax  6,334 2,925 

Accrued Expenses 

Audit Fees 

56,584 

2,000 

32,136 

2,000 

Total Payables  84,150 61,079 

 

Note 17- Provisions 

Year End Provisions    

Annual Leave 24,385 12,846 

Total Provisions  24,385 12,846 

   

NOTE 18 - Reserves  

Opening Balance  16,365 16,365 

Nett Income/ Expenditure  - - 

Closing Balance  16,365 16,365 

   

Colts Academy  

Opening Balance  10,747 10,747 

Net Income/ (Expenditure)  - - 

Closing Balance  10,747 10,747 

   

Total Reserves  27,112 27,112 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 
Independent Audit Report to The Members of Randwick District Rugby Union Football 
Club Inc  
 
Report on the Financial Report  
We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of 
Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc, which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 
September 2016, and the income and expenditure statement, a summary of significant 
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the statement by members of the committee.  

Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Report  

The committee of the association is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements, which form part of the financial report, are consistent with the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales and are 
appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee's responsibilities also include 
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that 
are reasonable in the circumstances.  

Auditor's Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion 
is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate 
to meet the needs of the members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
report.  
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The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the 
committee's financial reporting under the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales. We 
disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report 
to which it relates to any person other than the members, or for any purpose other than that for 
which it was prepared.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  

Independence  

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian 
professional ethical pronouncements.  
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Shannon Fraser and Ricky Dumigan from Execforce 

 

 

 

1959 Rugby Union Honours List included Terry Reid and Ken Thornett
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Randwick Hall of Fame 

 
The inaugural induction of sixteen past players into the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame took place 

on 9 September 2010 at the Hilton Hotel. 700 people joined the Club to celebrate the first group of 

inductees. Former Wallaby Rod Kafer acted as Master of Ceremonies for this occasion. Rod again 

served the Club as MC for the second induction ceremony held on 21 July 2011. Again at the 

Hilton Hotel, 600 people were present to receive seven additional past player inductees. The 

names of those admitted to the Club’s Hall of Fame are listed alphabetically by years. 

2010 
 

2011 2016 

JE Brass RSF Dwyer HW Baker  

AJ Buchan E Jones KA Cross 

DI Campese PN Kearns WT Outterside 

KW Catchpole JM Maxwell TW Reid 

MG Ella FW Meagher JM Weber 

RL Fairfax R Outterside LJ Walker 

PG Johnson KS Windon CJ Whitaker 

EJA McKenzie  ODA Finegan 

AR Morton   

SP Poidevin   

JL Sayle   

Sir NM Shehadie   

RN Thornett   

CH Towers   

WW Waugh   

CJ Windon   

 

 

HW Baker 
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NSW Grade Premiers 

  
The Randwick Club was formed in 1882 and has competed in the NSW First Division Competition from 

1889 to 1899, in 1914 and from 1923 to date. There was no competitive rugby played from 1915 to 

1918. The Club fielded Reserve Grade and Third Grade sides in First Division from 1908 to 1914. In the 

years when it was not in First Division Randwick competed in what is now the Sub-Districts 

Competition. Randwick’s successes in the NSW Club Championship and Grade Premierships follow:- 

 CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP 28 

1926,1928,1930,1939,1940,1944,1946,1965,1966.1967,1973,1980,1981,1982,1983, 

1984,1985,1986,1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1995,1996, 2000, 2003 

 FIRST GRADE PREMIERS 32 

1894,1895,1896,1897,1930,1934,1938,1940,1948,1959,1965,1966,1967,1971,1973, 

1974,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1984,1987,1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1996, 

2000, 2004 

RESERVE GRADE PREMIERS 17 

1930,1944,1946,1957,1958,1959,1966,1978,1980,1984,1985,1991,1992,1994,1996, 2004, 2016 

THIRD GRADE PREMIERS 16 

1912,1939,1943,1953,1963,1965,1966,1979,1982,1988,1989,1992,1999, 2000, 2004, 2010 

FOURTH GRADE PREMIERS 19 

1933,1937,1938,1942,1965(JP),1967,1968,1972,1974,1980(JP),1982,1984,1987,1989,1990,1997, 

2002, 2008, 2009 

FIFTH GRADE PREMIERS 18 

1976,1977,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1985,1987,1988,1989,1991,1992,1993,1996, 

1999, 2002, 2010 

SIXTH GRADE PREMIERS 6 

1986,1988 (JP),1990,1994,1995,1996 

SEVENTH GRADE PREMIERS 1 

1990 Sub Districts Walker Cup 

FIRST GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 11 

1972,1974,1976,1978,1981(JP),1982,1986,1989,1991,1995, 2014 

SECOND GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 9 

1970,1972,1975,1984,1985,1987,1996, 2000, 2016 

THIRD GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 4 

1984, 1985 (JP), 1991, 2012 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

88 
 

UNDER 19s PREMIERS 2 

1997, 2006 

 
 

 
Randwick Rugby was pleased to support and promote the UNSW Nura Gili program 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

89 
 

Outstanding Club Performances by a Randwick Player 

Most Points Scored by a Randwick Player: 
  
David Knox (1982 to 1998) 
246 games: 55 Tries, 536 Goals, 510 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2842 Points. 
His total made him the highest point scorer in Australian Club rugby. 
 
Gareth Smith (1991 to 2004) 
243 games: 94 Tries, 449 Goals, 277 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2191 points. 
 
Warwick Wheeler (1966 to 1976) 
232 games: 46 Tries, 232 Goals, 260 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1932 points. 
 
Mick Stynes (1957 to 1969) 
181 games: 15 Tries, 190 Goals, 174 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1149 points. 
 
Dave Ramsay (1978 to 1984) 
139 games: 31 Tries, 226 Goals, 159 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1053 points. 
  
Most Goals in a First Grade Match: 
  
Gareth Smith (2003) 
Kicked 13 goals against Warringah on 21 June 2003 at Coogee Oval. 
  
David Knox (1994) 
Kicked 12 goals against Drummoyne on 23 April 1994 at Coogee Oval. 
  
 
Try Scoring Feats in First Grade over a Career: 
 
Only two Randwick players, Terry Ryan and Cyril Towers, scored 100 or more First Grade tries. 
 
Terry Ryan (1970 to 1975) scored 106 tries in his 6 seasons as a winger with the Randwick Club. 
 
Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942) played at outside centre and scored 104 tries in his 18 seasons.  
  
 
Tries Scored in First Grade in a Season: 
  
Terry Ryan (1970 and 1971) established in 1970 a new competition record by scoring 24 tries in 
17 games. In 1971 he broke his own record for a season by scoring 25 tries in 20 games. 
 
Jack Gray-Spence (1936) was the first Randwick player to establish a competition record. His 
achievement stood at 23 tries scored in 20 games until broken by T Ryan in 1970. 
  
Tries in a First Grade Game: 
  
Michael Cleary (1961), established a new record of 7 tries in a match against Eastwood on 
19 August 1961 at Coogee Oval. This record stands today but was later equalled by a Gordon 
player. The previous record of 6 tries was held by two Randwick wingers: Owen Crossman (1924) 
and Len Slattery (1945). 
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First Grade Games: 
  
John Maxwell (1972 to 1992) In his 21 seasons as a back row forward J Maxwell played 323 First 
Grade games, by far a Club record. He also played 428 Club games, the second highest total for 
Randwick. He appeared in 14 First Grade Grand Finals and was on the winning side 10 times. 
 
John Weber (1960 to 1973) A lock and mainstay of the pack J Weber played 234 games over his 
14 seasons, breaking the record set by C Towers.  
 
Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942)       Best remembered as one of Australia’s greatest outside centres 
C Towers played in 233 First Grade games, then a Club record. 
  
Most Club Games: 
  
Bill Outterside (1952 to 1976) The Club record for the most matches played for Randwick is held 
by W Outterside at 432 games, of which, 205 were played in First Grade. Unlikely to be surpassed, 
his record was established over 25 seasons.     
 

Randwick Rugby Club Awards 

 
The following information is supplied for the benefit and interest of players, officials and 
members. Each entry is accompanied by a citation which spells out the criteria on which each 
award is based and a brief statement of the process by which each award is determined. 
 
Honorary Life Member 
 
The guidelines for the consideration and the recommendation as a Member worthy for election as a Life 
Member of the Club shall be: 
 
(a)   The nominee must have had a lengthy and distinguished career at the Club either as a player, 

coach, manager, volunteer worker or Council Member; 

(b)   The nominee must have made a considerable contribution to the game of Rugby at the Club; 

(c)   The nominee must have enhanced their personal reputation and the ethos of the Club through 
their ability, endeavour, sportsmanship and courage; 

(d)  The nominee must have accrued ten (10) points before consideration; 

(e)   Criteria points shall be allocated in the following manner: 
       *  fifty (50) First Grade games for the Club 2 points 
       *  one hundred (100) First Grade games for the Club 4 points 
       *  two hundred (200) games for the Club 4 points 
       *  one hundred (100) games for the Club 2 points 
       *  twenty-five (25) Colt games for the Club 1 point 
       *  fifty (50) Super Rugby games inclusive while a registered Randwick Club player 2 points 
       *  selected in twenty (25) Tests for Australia while a registered Randwick Club player 2 points 
       *  coach Super Rugby in Australia for each year 2 points 
       *  coach Australia (Wallabies) for each year 2 points 
       *  performing the role of Coach for the Club for each year 1 point 
       *  performing the role of Team Manager for each year 1 point 
       *  service to the Club or service to the Council for each service year 1 point 
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Comments: The above guidelines can be found in By-law 6 of the Club’s By-laws. The Life Members 

Association must vet and make recommendations to the Council of members considered worthy for 

election as a Life Member pursuant to Rule 5(4) of the Club Rules. This Rule refers to the power of the 

Club to elect Honorary Life Members. The Association is aided by its own Awards Subcommittee which 

carries out preparatory work and reviews nominees for consideration as Life Members. The 

Subcommittee, where possible, makes its recommendations to the Life Members Association which, in 

turn, forwards its advice to the Randwick Rugby Council. The Council then decides, based on a three 

fourths majority vote of Councillors, which names, if any, are put to the Annual General Meeting for 

election by Members where, again, a three-fourths majority is required by secret ballot. 

The Wally Meagher Memorial Trophy 

The recipient shall be a player possessing the qualities of sportsmanship, courage and modesty. He 

should display a willingness to subordinate his personal interest to those of his Fellows and his Team 

and generously others along the pathway of Rugby and along the broader highway of life. 

 
Comments: Any member may nominate a player for this award though, in practice, such nomination 

usually comes from a group of senior players referred to as the Player Committee. The nomination(s) 

are put to the Life Members Association which makes a recommendation to the Randwick Rugby 

Council. The Council is the final arbiter with respect to this award and does so based on a three fourths 

majority vote by Councillors. As with the Life Member nominations the Association’s Awards 

Subcommittee plays an intermediary role in terms of preparatory work and reviews with respect to 

nominees for this award. The Wally Meagher Memorial Trophy is not necessarily awarded annually. 

Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame 

The criteria for consideration and inclusion in the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame are: 

 The inductee must have been a distinguished Randwick First Grade Player 

 The inductee must have made a considerable contribution to the game of Rugby and to Randwick 

 The inductee must have enhanced his and Randwick’s reputation by his ability, sportsmanship 

and character 

Comments: Any member may nominate a potential inductee. In practice, however, such nominations 

are usually considered by the Life Members Association and forwarded to a Hall of Fame Committee 

comprising the Club President, a Convener appointed by the Randwick Rugby Council, the Club 

Archivist and two other Council appointees. The final decision regarding inductees rests with the 

Council. The inductees are selected by a vote supported by three fourths of the Councilors. 

Meritorious Service Award 

The criteria for the presentation of the Meritorious Service Award are that the recipient should be a non-

playing member who has rendered outstanding service to the Randwick Football Club. 

Comments: Any member may nominate another member for this Award. Nominations are then put to 

the Life Members Association which makes recommendations to the Randwick Rugby Council. The 

Association is assisted by its Awards Subcommittee which gathers information on the nominees and 

conducts preliminary reviews. The Council makes the final decision on this Award based on a vote by 

Councilors requiring a three fourths majority. The Award is not necessarily presented annually. 
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The WT (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy 

The recipient shall be a player acknowledged by his team-mates for his commitment to fitness, 

willingness to learn, loyalty to his fellows and to his Club and dedication to mastering the fundamentals 

of the Randwick Brand of Rugby.  

Comments: Unlike all other awards this trophy is judged by the Player Committee and not by the 

coaches or other Club officials. The Committee includes the Club Captain and the Player 

Representative on the Randwick Rugby Council. The Trophy is awarded annually. 

The Ron Don Memorial Trophy 

The Ron Don Memorial Trophy is awarded to the most improved player in the Club. 

Comments: This Trophy was introduced in 1967 to honour Ron Don for his dedicated service to the 

Club and his continuous support of the players. He was Honorary Timekeeper 1955-59 and Assistant 

Honorary Secretary from 1957 until his death in April, 1967.  Ron Don served in both positions 1957-59. 

Each year the winner of this Trophy is decided upon by the Club Coach and Assistant Coaches. 

The Dick Quinlan Trophy 

The Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy is awarded to the best clubman in Fourth Grade. 

Comments: Presented to the Club by Dick Quinlan in 1962 this Trophy is awarded annually. 

The donor did this in order to focus attention on the players in the, then, lowest grade. He, himself, 

never played above this level but was proud to be a former Randwick player. Following his retirement 

Dick Quinlan gave many years of service to the Easts-Randwick JRU as a coach with the Randwick 

Central Club and later as its President. The recipient of this Trophy is decided upon by the Fourth 

Grade Coach and Manager. Dick Quinlan passed away in 1975. 

The Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy 

The Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy is awarded to the Grade Team that scores the most number of tries 

in a season. 

Comments: Promoted by the Life Members Association, the establishment of the Laurie Argue 

Memorial Trophy was endorsed by the Randwick Rugby Council. The Trophy serves to perpetuate the 

memory of Laurie Argue, a long-time and enthusiastic devotee of the running game. It is designed to 

recognise the team(s) that scores the most tries in a season and the respective coach(es). The 

selection of the team(s) is determined from the Team Sheets completed by the Managers and the 

cumulative records of the Club Statistician. 

The Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy 

The Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy recognises the best Colts Clubman of the year. 

Comments: This Trophy was designed to honour the memory of Aiden Wilson, a talented inside centre 

who played in the Randwick Under 19 Colts Team of 2006. Tragically, he was killed in an unfortunate 

incident on Sydney Harbour on 25 November 2006. The recipient is decided annually by a joint decision 

made by the Colts Coordinator and Colts Coaches. 
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The remaining Club Awards are determined on the basis of the following two criteria: 

Statistics kept on Manager Team Sheets and the records of the Club Statistician 

Committees: the Club Coach and Assistant Coaches for Seniors and the Colts Coordinator and Team 

Coaches for the Colts. 

 
Awards based on Statistics 
 

 Milestone Awards 

 Best and Fairest Awards 

 Randwick Rugby Trophy for the Best and Fairest Player in the Club* 

 CH Towers Trophy for the season’s leading try scorer 
 
* From the Best and Fairest the Club Coach makes the final selection 
 
Awards based on Committee decisions 
 

 Best Clubman of the Year 

 Rookie of the Year 

 Club’s Most Valuable Player 

 Best New Player in the Club 

 Colts Player of the Year 

 Coach’s Best All-Rounder on and off the Field # 

 C J Windon Trophy (for the Best Back Rower) 
 
# This Award is made by the Club Coach. He may seek advice from the Assistant Coaches 

 

 
Adam Freier “Best Clubman of 2016” 
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Matt Buckland and Luke Rowntree 
       

       
 

Tom Hart, Justin Cooper and Travis Partridge 
 

     
Michael Clarke, Joe Whitelock, James Lancaster 

 
2016 Players Awards evening 
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Club Captain Patrick Hodgetts 
 

                
 

4ths Captain Tom Weber                                   Reece Robinson  
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Randwick Rugby Club  

 

President 

  

1923 - 1938 

1939 - 1953 

1954 - 1966 

1967 - 1975 

1976 - 1988 

1989 - 1994 

1995 - 2002 

2003 - 2005 

2006 - 2009 

2010 

2011 - 2012 

2012 

 

Deputy President 

  

1973 - 1975 

1976   

1977   

1978 - 1988 

1989 - 1990 

1991  

1992 - 1994 

1995 

 

1996 

1997 - 1998 

1999 - 2001 

2002 - 2003 

 

 

J M Dunningham 

C R Davidson 

F W Meagher 

H J C Kahl 

R W Meagher 

P K Court 

J L Sayle 

D C Cleary 

I A North 

B M Jorgensen 

A F Bell 

R S F Dwyer 

 

 

 

R W Meagher 

R S F Dwyer 

P M Willcox 

P K Court 

J Cotis 

R Pye 

S Wheeler 

J Cotis 

I M Kennedy 

I M Kennedy 

J Tuxworth 

B Sobb 

J Murray 

Hon. Secretary 

  

1923 - 1924 

1925 - 1926 

1927 - 1931 

1932 - 1941 

1942 - 1943 

1943 - 1948 

1949 - 1950 

1951 - 1966 

1967 - 1968 

1969 

1970 - 1976 

1977 - 1978 

1978 

1979 - 1985 

1985 – 1988 

1989 - 1992 

1993 - 1995 

1996 - 2003 

2004 - 2005 

2006 

  

 

 

E C Green 

W K Stewart 

N E Eglese 

M M Atkins 

W G Archer 

J V Maloney 

V Ford 

H J Kahl 

R B Ford 

A M Moore 

P M Willcox 

K R Devlin 

P M Willcox 

K Bull 

R Graham 

V Singer 

E Turner 

D Eggins 

R Illidge 

D Eggins 
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Hon. Treasurer 

  

1923 - 1926 

1927 - 1942 

1943  

1943 - 1948 

1949 - 1954 

1955 

1955 – 1956 

1957 - 1960 

1961 - 1964 

1965 - 1966 

1967 - 1972 

1973 - 1977 

1978 

1979 - 1983 

1984 

1985 

1986 

1987 

1988 - 1989 

1990 - 2003 

2004 - 2005  

2006 - 2009 

2010 - 2013  

2014 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

C Bluett 

E K Dobbs 

J V Maloney 

M M Atkins 

J F Lane 

E Howe 

J F Lane 

A Blomberg 

R W Meagher 

A Dumbleton 

R W Meagher 

C H New 

K Bull 

N Frumar 

P McGuinn 

A Manollaros 

K Campbell 

P M Willcox 

J L Sayle 

D Henry 

I Bonnette 

R W Meagher 

Q Olde 

I Bonnette 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Club Coach  

 

1923 - 1930            H W Baker 

1931 – 1953           F M Meagher 

1954 

1855 – 1957 

1958 – 1960 

1961 - 1962 

1963 - 1964 

1965 - 1969 

1970 - 1976 

1977 - 1981 

1982 - 1983 

1984 - 1988 

1989 

1990 - 1991 

1992 

1993 - 1995 

1996 - 2001 

2002 

2003 - 2004 

2004  

2005 

2006 

2007  

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011  

2012 

2013 - 2014 

2015  

C G Stone 

C Windon 

C Thornley 

H Stephen 

C Thornley 

J Hovey 

R Outterside 

R S F Dwyer  

J L Sayle 

R S F Dwyer 

A A Gaffney 

J L Sayle 

A A Gaffney 

J Maxwell 

J L Sayle 

J Maxwell 

G Gavalas 

Glen Ella 

J Sayle/M Kennedy 

T Louden 

M Giacheri/J Evans 

M Giacheri 

G Ella 

M Giacheri 

C Morrison 

J Maxwell 

W Kelly 

S Fraser 
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Club Captain 

1981 – 1988 S Wheeler 

1989 – 1991 P Willey 

1992 R Keyes 

1993 – 1994 R Willey 

1995   T Kava 

1996 – 2001 R Willey 

2002 – 2003 D Grant 

2004 – 2005 C Houston 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009- 2010 

2011   

D Grant 

K Turner 

N McMahon 

D Spencer 

A Savovski / T Weber 

2012                        L McKay 

2013                        A Halangahu 

2014 T Bennett 

2015 D Parsons 

2016 P Hodgetts 

 

 

 

Colts 1 Captain Jack Hayson ~ NSW U20s Captain 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

99 
 

 

First Grade Captains 

 

First Grade Captains (continued) 

1923  W K Stewart 1981-1982 

1983-1984 

1981 - 1982 

1983 - 1984 

1985 

1986 - 1987 

1988 

1989   

1990 - 1991 

1992 - 1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 - 1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

 

2004 - 2005 

2006 - 2007 

2008      

2009  

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

R Evan 

M Ella 

R Evan 

M Ella 

S Poidevin 

B Burke 

T Kava / B Burke 

M Murray /B Burke 

M Murray 

T P Kava 

L Walker 

T P Kava 

P Cheika 

P Cheika / M Cheika 

M Cheika 

D Ryan / S Pinkerton 

D Ryan / S Pinkerton 

D McRae 

L Donald / D McRae /  

O Finegan 

S Berne 

C Houston 

C Houston / S Hoiles 

A Halangahu 

G Fairbanks / P Phibbs 

T McGann 

T Browne 

S Lam 

S Figg / F Asa 

1924 F W Meagher 

1925 - 1926 

1927 - 1930 

1931 - 1934 

1935 

1936 - 1937 

1938 - 1942 

1944 - 1947 

1948 - 1949 

1950 

1951 - 1952 

1953 

 

1954 - 1956 

1957   

1958 - 1961 

1962 

1963 - 1968 

1969 - 1970 

1971   

1972 

1973 - 1975 

1976 

1977  

1978-1979 

1977 – 1980 

L Palfreyman 

F W Meagher 

J O’Connor 

C H Towers 

V Richards 

C H Towers 

J Cremin 

C Windon 

N Shehadie 

C Windon 

N Shehadie 

J Hovey 

N Shehadie 

R M Tooth 

R Outterside 

K Catchpole/A Moore 

K Catchpole 

J Quick 

K Catchpole 

W Outterside 

A Norley 

I Kennedy 

A Jones 

I Kennedy 

M Ella 

   2015                       D Horwitz / M Baldwin 
               2016         M Baldwin / A Deegan
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200 Senior Club Games 

 

WT Outterside 432 P(Peter)  Wright 229 

JM Maxwell 428 D Ryan 227 

JL Sayle 379 R Evans 224 

RJ Willey 365 MS Young 222 

G Logan 356 W Melrose 222 

RSF Dwyer 347 D O’Shea 222 

V Singer 324 RH Day 220 

M Kondilios 312 KL Bull 219 

SA Wheeler 310 L Davidson 219 

P Cheika 296 P O'Sullivan 217 

RP Illidge 289 JW Turner 217 

PE Willey 287 J Riley 216 

M Cheika 286 KAP Phibbs 214 

G Karras 286 S Baker 213 

J Picone 283 A Bargenda 213 

JM Weber 282 D Rapp 211 

LJ Walker 278 E Jones 210 

RN Tomlinson 276 A Norley 210 

J Waqanabaravi 272 AA Gaffney 209 

K Leasuasu 264 B Hayes 208 

I Hartley 262 DP Habler 206 
G Sommerville 259 KG Brown 203 

T Maxwell 257 D Grant 203 

TG Evans 256 M Kemp 202 

M Kiernan 256 MJ Murray 202 

T Cripps 254 R Pye 202 

P Antoniades 253 C Seroukas 202 

M Della Marta 253 T Tanner 202 

M  Ramsay 253 G Stores 200 

D Knox 250 J Tuxworth 200 

M Spurgeon 246    

G Smith 243    

A Sing 241    

PG Johnson 239    

T Purdy 239    

A Halangahu 237    

IM Kennedy 236    

WT Matthews 234    

K Seiler 234    

CH Towers 234    

DA Watson 234    

PM Slyney 229    

 

 

 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

101 
 

100 First Grade Games 

 

John Maxwell 323  Simon Poidevin 125 

John Weber 234  Gary Ella 123 

Cyril Towers 233  Chris Houston 118 

Lloyd Walker 225  Ewen McKenzie 116 

Peter Johnson 215  Mick O’Gorman 114 

David Knox 213  Steve Brennan 113 

Michael Cheika 212  Patrick Phibbs 113 

Bill Outterside 205  Tony Purdy 112 

Alan Sing 200  Don Furness 111 

Ken Catchpole 177  Mark Ella 110 

Nick Shehadie 175  Owen Finegan 110 

Mick Murray 172  Terry Ryan 109 

Ray Evans 163  Mick Rosenberg 108 

Mal Murray 162  Willie Gordon 104 

Tim Kava 160  Omar Hassanein 104 

Jeff Sayle 160  Terry Reid 103 

Warwick Waugh 157  Keith Windon 103 

Antonio Halangahu 157  Les Bedford 102 

Nick Howlett 152  Denis Cleary 102 

Eddie Jones 147  John McGowan 102 

Bob Outterside 146  John Cole 102 

Mick Young 143  Stu Rutherford 102 

Gavin Boneham 141  Wally Meagher 100 

Keith Gordon 141  Mick Stynes 100 

Joe Picone 141  Adam Freier                        100 

Ian Kennedy 140    

Glen Ella 134    

Jack Hovey 134    

Mick Cremin 132    

Tony Moore 132    

Keith Cross 131    

Jack O’Connor 131    

Alan Norley 131    

Adrian Jones 131    

Len Palfreyman 130    

Pat Slyney 128    

Brad Burke 127    

Acura Niuqila 127    

Gareth Smith 126    
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The Wally Meagher Trophy 

(Outstanding Clubman) 

1970 K W Catchpole  1992 M Spurgeon 

1971 P G  Johnson  1997 P Cheika 

1972 J L Sayle  2002 R Willey 

1973 J M Weber  2006 C Whitaker 

1974 W T  Outterside  2007 A Freier 

1975 RSF Dwyer  2008 S Hoiles 

1976 G Lisle  2009 P Phibbs 

1977 I M  Kennedy  2010 A James 

1980 J Maxwell  2013 C Barron 

1984 M Ella     

1985 S Wheeler     

1990 E Jones     

 

Best and Fairest Award 

1965 D Saunders  1991 A McDonald 

1966 K Israel  1992 D Kelaher 

1967 K Catchpole  1993 M Girvan 

1968 V Greenfield  1994 D Jepson 

1968 V Singer  1995 C Whitaker 

1969 M Stynes  1996 L Donald 

1970 J Murray  1997 B Gill 

1970 R Cameron  1998 L Kama 

1971 A Hope  1999 D Ryan 

1972 D Watson  2000 L Donald 

1973 J Berne  2001 D Grant 

1974 J Davis  2002 D McCrae 

1975 M McMahon  2003 D Haare 

1976 J Maxwell  2004 S Berne 

1977 G McElhone  2005 E Wyllie 

1978 J Tuxworth  2006 A Halangahu 

1979 W Taylor  2007 M Whittleston 

1980 D Taylor  2008 S Kepu 

1981 A Back  2009 B Orbell 

1982 E Jones  2010 L Taukeiaho 

1983 P Willey  2011 T McGann 

1984 B Burke  2012 P Noriega 

1985 G Boneham  2013 M Bannon 

1986 M Clift  2014 F Asa 

1987 I Tomasiello  2015 M Baldwin 

1988 L Walker  2016 A Deegan 

1990 A  James     

1989 S Poidevin     
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Ron Don Trophy 

(Most Improved Player) 

 

1967 M Carpenter  1993 D Jones 

1968 B Fahey  1994 J Picone 

1969 K Bullivant  1995 J Thompson 

1970 K Phibbs  1996 C Whitaker 

1971 C Allsop  1997 B Gill 

1972 C Allsop  1998 O Hassanein 

1973 J Davis  1999 A Freier 

1974 G Pearse  2000 J Pritchard 

1975 W Mackey  2001 J Shelley 

1976 A Purdy  2002 A Freier 

1977 G McElhone  2003 M Turinui 

1978 G Conacher  2004 S Hoiles 

1979 W Taylor  2005 E Wyllie 

1980 M Ella  2006 A Aiken 

1981 J Tuxworth  2007 D Edwards 

1982 E Jones  2008 D Vizer 

1983 T Kava  2009 D Parsons 

1984 T Evans  2010 J Terry 

1985 E Jones  2011 M Toa 

1986 E McKenzie  2012 T Bennett 

1987 E McKenzie  2013 T Goodbody 

1988 M Cheika  2014 J Harris 

1989 P Kearns  2015 M Short 

1990 J Flett  2016 L Anderson 

1991 H Charalambous     

1992 M Kemp     

 

 

 

 

Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy 

(Best Clubman in Fourth grade) 

 

1962 V Lee  1990 P Antoniades 

1963 W O’Brien  1991 L Davison 

1964 R Finnie  1992 M Wild 

1965 P Court  1993 S Brown 

1966 P Kennedy  1994 R Keyes 

1967 P Fahey  1995 R Willey 

1968 G Lisle  1996 D White 

1969 W McKinley  1997 A Henrys 

1970 G Lisle  1998 C Martlew 

1971 K Robinson  1999 A Mann 

1972 G Farrant  2000 C Trimmer 

1973 C Faulks  2001 B Bishop 
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1974 C Walker  2002 P Ringland 

1975 R Slater  2003 J Shelley 

1976 M McMahon  2004 L Galpern 

1977 I Hartley  2005 E Wyllie 

1978 K Harron  2006 N Davies 

1979 R Day  2007 D Gee 

1980 F Back  2008 L McKay 

1981 G Stokes  2009 S Lolo 

1982 M Stokes  2010 T Weber 

1983 W Negus  2011 T Martin 

1984 M Rains  2012 S Malone 

1985 P O’Sullivan  2013 S Malone 

1986 D Rapp  2014 M Kite 

1987 P Kennedy  2015 } T Martin 

1988 S Morgan  2015 } J Musgrove 

1989 R Illidge  2016 L Roughton 

 

Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy 

(Colts Clubman of the Year) 

 

2007 A Patty  2014 D O’Donahue 

2008 M Gibson  2015 N Kellaway 

2009 L Henry  2016 W Anderson 

2010 T Jeffs     

2011 J Weatheall     

2012 M Meoli     

2013 J Armstrong     

 

 

 

 

Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy 

(team with most tries in a season) 

 

2007 First and Third Grade (Equal 76 tries)  2013 Second Grade 131 tries 

2008 Fourth Grade 183 tries  2014 Third Grade  79 tries 

2009 Second Grade 139 tries  2015 Third Grade 97 tries 

2010 Second Grade 122 tries  2016 Second Grade 92 tries 

2011 Third Grade 129 tries     

2012 Third Grade 88 tries     

 

The W T (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy 

 

2010 T Browne  2014 F Asa 

2011 S Foley  2015 J Hayson 

2012 D Ferguson  2016 J Armstrong 

2013 C Barron    
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Best Clubman of the Year 

 

2006 C Houston  2012 D Ferguson 

2007 N McMahon  2013 M Kiernan 

2008 P Wright  2014 D O’Donahue 

2009 A James  2015 H Boileau 

2010 A James  2016 A Freier 

2011 T  Maxwell     

 

Rookie of the Year 

2007 D Kroll  2013 W Munro 

2008 T Luxford  2014 A Kellaway 

2009 P Hodgetts  2015 H Hutchison 

2010 M McKay  2016 H Goddard 

2011 E Ford     

2012 T Hepetema     

 

C J Windon Trophy 

(Best backrower in the club) 

2013 T Connor 

2014 T Connor 

2015 M Baldwin 

2016 M Baldwin 

 

C H Towers Trophy 

(season leading try scorer) 

2016 
 9 

 Chris Taripo 

 

Most Valuable Player — Grade 

2016 N Hanigan 

 

Club Most Valuable Player — Colts 

2016 J Cooper 

 

Best New Player In The Club 

2015 S Satuala 
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Most Games For The Club In Grade — 2016 

Valerio Ricci - 22 

 

Most Games For The Club In Colts — 2016 

Kieran Bonin - 26 

 

Coaches Best All Rounder On And Off The Field 

2016  T Goodbody 

 

Meritorious Service Award 

 

2008 

JD    Brewer 

JW  Dingle 

DS Eggins 

AD James 

DC Long 

PN Raftos 

MA Wheeler 

 

2009 

RB  Curtis 

T   McMahon 

BG Sobb 

 

2012 

DG Alexander 

RA Devine 

JE Dubos 

RC Jennings 

MJ Lewis 

CG Luxford 

 

2013 

B Bishop 

D Dowe 

A Stutchbury 

 
 

2014 

S Holton 

P Meagher 

J Picone 
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Represented Australia [101] 
 

Player 
 

Player 
 

Player 
 

H W Baker [Harald] 3 D C Furness [Don] 1 A S Niuqila [Acura] 3 

H S Barker [Herb] 7 M J Giteau [Matt] 103 D S O'Callaghan [Denis] 
 

K Beale [Kurtley] 60 K M Gordon [Keith] 2 J A O'Connor [Jack] 4 

J E Berne [John] 1 G M Gregan * [George]  129 J B O'Donnell [John] 3 

C D Blades [Cameron] 1 P F Hawthorne [Phil] 2 R Outterside [Bob] 2 

A J Bowers [Allen] 2 E L J Heinrich [Ted] 10 J R L Palfreyman [Len] 4 

J E Brass [John] 12 V W Heinrich [Vince] 2 G K Pearse [Gary] 9 

J V Brown [Jim] 9 S A Hoiles [Stephen]  16 B J C Piper [Brian] 6 

A J Buchan [Arthur]  7 J C Holbeck [James] 8 S P Poidevin * [Simon] 58 

B T Burke [Brad] 1 M L Howell [Max] 5 B J Porter [Basil] 
 

M P Burke [Matt] 23 P G Johnson * [Peter] 42 K M Ramsay [Mack] 4 

B C Caldwell [Bruce] 1 P A Jones [Peter] 2 R Rankin [Ron] 
 

D I Campese [David] 101 J Jones-Hughes [Jason] 
 

T W Reid [Terry] 5 

K W Catchpole * [Ken] 27 P K Jorgensen [Peter] 2 V Richards [Vic] 5 

R M Cawsey [Roy] 3 P B Judd [Bruce] 8 M S Rogers [Matt] 7 

M Chisholm [Mark] 48 D K Junee [Darren] 2 G Ruebner [George] 2 

M A Cleary [Michael] 6 T P Kava [Tim] 
 

J L Sayle [Jeff] 1 

J W Cole [John] 24 P N Kearns * [Phil] 67 N M Shehadie * [Nick] 30 

J F Cremin * [Mick] 3 T P Kelaher [Tim] 31 P V Smith [Phil] 8 

K A Cross [Keith] 19 S M Kepu [Sekope] 75 C G Stone [Gordon] 1 

O C Crossman [Owen] 15 D J Knox [David] 13 R N Thornett [Dick] 11 

A J Daly [Tony] 22 A Magro [Adam] 
 

R M Tooth * [Dick] 2 

J L Duncan [Jackie] 1 B P Malouf [Bruce]  1 C H T Towers * [Cyril] 19 

G A Ella [Gary] 6 F W Meagher [Wally] 8 M P Turinui [Morgan] 20 

G J Ella [Glen] 4 D A Mitchell [Drew] 71 L F Walker [Lloyd] 8 

M G Ella * [Mark] 25 S W J Miller [Syd] 1 W W Waugh [Warwick] 8 

R D Elsom * [Rocky] 75 A M Moore [Tony] 
 

R E Westfield [Bob]  6 

E J Fahey [Ted] 1 C V Morrissey [Tug] 2 C J Whitaker * [Chris] 28 

R L Fairfax [Russell] 8 A R Morton  [Alan] 11 W J White [Bill] 3 

O D A Finegan  [Owen] 55 P J Mulligan [Patsy] 1 J L Williams [John]  3 

A N Finlay ["Huck"] 3 M A Murray [Mick] 
 

C J Windon * [Col] 20 

J A Flett [John] 4 A McDonald [Adrian] 
 

K S Windon [Keith] 3 

J A Francis [John] 
 

B S McDonald [Barry] 2 K J Wright [Ken] 9 

A L Freier [Adam] 25 E J A McKenzie [Ewen] 51   
 

* Australian Captains 
 
Randwick has produced 101 Australian representative players. 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

108 
 

The Wallaby tourists who did not play in tests are: 

John Francis, Jason Jones-Hughes, Tim Kava, Adrian McDonald, Adam Magro, Tony Moore, Mick 

Murray, Denis O’Callaghan, Basil Porter, Ron Rankin. 

Notes: The aforementioned list of Australian representatives includes: 

 Members of NSW sides from 1923 to 1928 inclusive, who played against New Zealand, Maori and 

British sides and all of whom have since been accorded Australian representative status. 

 Members of the 1939/40 Australian side which arrived in Britain at the outbreak of World War 2, 

played no games in Europe, and who have been accorded test representative status.  

 George Gregan is Australia’s most capped test player with 139 tests [129 with Randwick]. David 

Campese with 101 tests [74 with Randwick] and Simon Poidevin [49 tests with Randwick] were 

previously Australia’s most capped players, as were Peter Johnson [42] and Nick Shehadie [30]. 

  
Captains of Australia [12] 
 
Ken Catchpole, Mark Ella, Rocky Elsom, George Gregan, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns, Simon 

Poidevin, Nick Shehadie, Dick Tooth, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker and Col Windon. 

  
Wallabies Hall of Fame  
 
The following eight Randwick players have been inducted in the Wallabies Hall of Fame: 

 David Campese 623 

 Ken Catchpole 455 

 Mark Ella 616 

 Wally Meagher 202  

 Simon Poidevin 614  

 Sir Nicholas Shehadie 352 

 Cyril Towers 230 

 Col Windon 33 
 
IRB Hall of Fame 

The following six Randwick players have been inducted to the IRB Hall of Fame  

 DI Campese 

 KW Catchpole 

 RSF Dwyer 

 MG Ella 

 GM Gregan 

 Sir NM Shehadie 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club 

Australian Representation 
 

Explanatory Note 
 
Australian Representation, in this report, refers to Australian teams which played against 
international teams from overseas. Acknowledged by the Australian Rugby Union, they include: 
 
Australia A (earlier years called Australia XV and Australia B) 
Junior Wallabies (now referred to as Emerging Wallabies) 
Australian Colts (some referred to as U23 Wallabies or Emerging Wallabies as well) 
Australian Barbarians (included the matches against International Teams only) 
Australian Imperial Forces (games against Australia) 
 
Randwick Australian Representatives  
 
1951 An Australian XV v New Zealand 

NM Shehadie 
 
1968 Junior Wallabies 
 JW Cole 
 
1971 Junior Wallabies v South Africa 
 RL Fairfax  I Fisher  JR Murray 
 
1972 Australian U23 Colts tour of Japan, Hong Kong and Taiwan 
 JR Murray  TJ Ryan CP Allsop 
 
Randwick representatives in Rugby World Cups – Wallabies unless otherwise listed 
 
1987  
Matthew P. Burke  
David Campese  
Simon Poidevin 
 
1991  
David Campese  
Tony Daly 
John Flett 
Phil Kearns  
David Knox 
Adrian McDonald 
Simon Poidevin  
Ewen McKenzie  
Coach - Bob Dwyer  
 
1995  
Phil Kearns  
David Campese  
George Gregan  
Ewen McKenzie  
Tony Daly  
Warwick Waugh 
Mark Giachieri - Italy 
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1999  
George Gregan  
Owen Finegan  
Chris Whitaker  
Chris Latham  
Phil Kearns 
Mark Giachieri - Italy 
Jason Jones-Hughes - Wales 
 
2003  
Mat Rogers  
Chris Latham  
Matt Giteau  
Morgan Turinui  
George Gregan  
Chris Whitaker 
Coach: Eddie Jones 
James Pritchard - Canada 
 
2007  
Drew Mitchell  
Matt Giteau  
Chris Latham  
Rocky Elsom  
Adam Freier  
Stephen Hoiles  
George Gregan  
Mark Chisholm 
James Pritchard - Canada 
 
2011  
Kurtley Beale 
Rocky Elsom 
 
2015  
Kurtley Beale 
Matt Giteau 
Sekope Kepu 
Drew Mitchell 
Coach: Michael Cheika 
James Pritchard - Canada 
Phil Mack – Canada 
Nemani Nadolo - Fiji 
Chris Baumann – USA 
Al McFarland – USA 
Coach: Eddie Jones - Japan 
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Australian Under 20/21 Representatives [44] 
 

1980 Glen J Ella, Gary A Ella, George Gavalas, Tim Lane, Lloyd J Walker 

1983 Matthew P Burke, Michael E Murray 

1984 Timothy P Kava  

1988 Michael Cheika, Phillip N Kearns 

1989 Jason A Weber, George Websdale 

1990 Jason A Weber, George Websdale 

1991 Peter Jorgensen 

1993 Owen D A Finegan, Peter Jorgensen, David Kelaher       

1994 James Holbeck, Peter Jorgensen, Craig McMullen, Stuart Pinkerton 

1996 Chris Latham 

1997 Jason Jones-Hughes, Luke Mann, Fosi Pala'amo, Christian Warner 

1998 Brendan Williams 

1999 Matthew Bowman, Shaun Berne, William Gordon, Brendan Williams 

2000 Matthew Bowman, Adam Freier, William Gordon 

2001 Adam Freier 

2002 Morgan Turinui 

2003 Rocky Elsom, Lei Tomiki 

2004 Rocky Elsom, Rex Tapuai, Lei Tomiki 

2008 Ratu Nasiganiyavi [U20] 

2013 Mark Baldwin [U20] 

2014 David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway [U20] 

2015 Sam Croke, Andrew Deegan, Ned Hanigan, Olly Kamp, Andrew Kellaway, Lukhan Lealaiaulotu-Tui 

[U20] 

2016  Vunipola Fifita, Simon Kennewell, Lukhan Tui [U20] 

 
Australian Sevens Representatives (37) 
 
Brad Burke  Darren Junee  Gary Pearse 
Vincent Byrne  Wise Kativerata Patrick Phibbs 
David Campese David Kelaher  Simon Poidevin 
John Carse  Timothy Kelaher Qele Ratu 
Nick Cummins  Daniel Kroll  Matthew Rogers 
Glen Ella  Arthur Little  Gareth Smith 
Mark Ella   
Sam Figg  John Maxwell  Morgan Turinui 
John Flett  Shawn Mackay Henry Vanderglas 
Shaun Foley  Craig McMullen Tim Walsh 
William Gordon Luke Milton  Brendan Williams 
Stephen Hoiles Acura S Niuqila Kenneth Wright 
Henry Hutchison Gerry O'Neill  Timothy Wright 
 
 
Australia’s Deaf Rugby Team Representative      Lucas Marquardt 
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Ned Hanigan 

 
 
Represented New South Wales [199]  
 
Aho R Richie 1  Caldwell BC Bruce 3  Duncan JL       Jackie 10 

Baker HW Harald 1  Campese DI * David 56  Dyson FJ Fletcher 4 

Barker HS Herb 9  Carlton JA Jimmy 2  Ella GA Gary 27 

Barker S Scott 1  Carraro M Matt 46  Ella GJ Glen 25 

Barrie W Bill 17  Catchpole KW *  Ken 26  Ella MG * Mark 26 

Beale KJ Kurtley 110  Cawsey RM Roy 4  Elsom RD Rocky 65 

Bedford LS Les 4  Cheika M Michael 3  Evans CD Charlie 6 

Berne JE John 4  Choromanski M Michael 3  Fahey EJ * Ted 7 

Berne SE Shaun 46  Clarke C Charlie 1  Fairfax RL Russell 5 

Blades CD Cameron 19  Cleary D Denis 2  Finegan ODA Owen 6 

Bolden R Ron 3  Cleary MA Michael 6  Finlay AN * Huck 5 

Boneham G Gavin 1  Cole JW John 20  Fisher I Igo 2 

Bowers AJA Allen 8  Coleman W Bill 1  Fitzgerald JF   1 

Bowman M Matt 1  Cornelson R Rudi 1  Flett JA John 4 

Brass JE John 10  Craig GK Greg 4  Francis JA John 1 

Braund AW Arthur 1  Cremin JF * Mick 10  Fraser J A  John 5 

Brown JV Jim 9  Cross KA Keith 27  Freier A L  * Adam 84 

Buchan AJ Arthur 6  Crossman OC    Owen 15  Furness D C  Don 12 

Burke BT Brad 8  Daly AJ    *  Tony 29  Galloway W  * Pony 17 

Burke MP Matt 15  Duggan T Tom 3  Garvey N G  Norm 3 
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Giacheri M Mark 3  Manlowe John 1  Ramsay KM Mack 11 

Gordon K M Keith 5  Marron JH John 1  Rankin R Ron 3 

Gray-Spence J John 5  Marsden WA Warren 2  Rathie DS David 3 

Haare DT John 3  Marshall AA Arnold 4  Reid TW Terry 11 

Hadwin J John 2  Maxwell J John 1  Richards V * Vic 18 

Hanigan N Ned 2  McDonald A Adrian 2  Riley ON  Oliver 9 

Hanna A Alf 4  McKenzie EJA Ewen 37  Robinson R       Reece 9 

Hardiman VJ Vince 1  McMahon J John 1  Rogers MS          Mat 18 

Hassanein O Omar 2  McMahon J * Jim 13  Rowntree RMW  Ralph 4 

Hawthorne PF Phil 3  McRae DN    *      Duncan 35  Ruebner G George 3 

Heinrich ELJ Ted 11  Meagher F W       Wally 20  Ryan TJ Terry 2 

Heinrich VW Vince 3  Miller M Michael 5  Sayle JL Jeff 3 

Henlen F * Fred 28  Miller RK Ross 1  Scott A  Allen 1 

Hepetema  T Terrence 1  Miller SWJ Syd 13  Sheehan WBJ Billy 1 

Herd HV Harold 2  Miller VCL Vic 2  Shehadie * NM Nick 37 

Hoiles SA Stephen 64  Mitchell DA Drew 39  Slee H N   Herman 2 

Hooton JR John 7  Moore AM Tony 2  Smith PV Phil 9 

Horton P Jack 1  Morrison JH John 3  Stone CG * Gordon 8 

Horwitz D David 8  Morton AR Alan 18  Stynes MJ Mick 1 

Hovey J Jack 1  Mowen BW Ben 27  Surman F * Frank 15 

Howell ML Max 5  Mulligan PJ Patsy 2  Tanner WH Bill 3 

Howlett NJ Nick 5  Murray MA * Mick 11  Tapuai RH Rex 3 

Hoy J Jonnie 4  
 

Neilsen S Scott 2  Thornett KE Ken 5 

Hume HJ Harold 2  Nethery M Michael 2  Thornett RN Dick 4 

Jones A Adrian 1  Niuqila AS        Acura 12  Tooth R M  Dick 3 

Jones E Eddie 12  O'Callaghan DS  Denis 3  Towers C H T  * Cyril 72 

Jones PA Peter 2  O'Connor JA Jack 11  Purnell FA  Frank 2 

Jorgensen PK Peter 14  O'Connor WB Bil 8  Turinui M P  Morgan 64 

Judd PB             Bruce 20  O'Donnell JB John 8  Walker L F  Lloyd 25 

Junee DK Darren 19  O'Gorman M Mick 2  Walsh A S  Adam 1 

Kativerata W Wise 3  O'Neill GW Gerry 1  Warner C P  Christian 41 

Kava TO Tim 34  Outram GH George 6  Waugh N Nigel 3 

Kearns PN * Phil 73  Outterside R Bob 6  Waugh WW Warwick 58 

Kelaher TO Tim 29  Outterside WT Bill 1  Weber JM  John 4 

Kellaway A Drew 7  Pakalani A Atieli 10  Westfield RE Bob 6 

Kepu SM Sekope 96  Palfreyman JRL   Len 21  Whitaker CJ * Chris 118 

Knox DJ David 25  Parish HP Harold 8  White WJ             Bill 29 

Kuarté TMK Dashville   Pauling TG Tom 3  Whiteside R Robert 1 

Larnach-Jones GR Rex 7  Pearse Gk Gary 10  Williams B Brendan 9 

Latham CE         Chris 10  Penfold RF Ron 1  Williams JL John 2 

Lay RW Bob 2  Phibbs P Patrick 1  Windon CJ * Col 26 

Lewis RW Bob 2  Pinkerton S I * Stuart 66  Windon K S * Keith 16 

Little AD Arthur 4  Piper BJC  Brian 6  Winn CS Charlie 7 

Mackay S Shawn 6  Poidevin SP * Simon 58  Wright KJ Ken 6 

Magro A Adam 4  Porter BJ Basil 3  Wright T Tim 4 

Malone T Tom 1  Potgeiter J Jacques 33  Young M Mick 3 

Malouf BP Bruce 8         
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Captains of NSW [27]  
 
Shaun Berne, Brad Burke, David Campese, Ken Catchpole, Mick Cremin, Tony Daly, Mark Ella, 
Ted Fahey, Huck Finlay, Adam Freier, Pony Galloway, Fred Henlen, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns, 
Mick Murray, Jim McMahon, Duncan McRae, Stuart Pinkerton, Simon Poidevin, Vic Richards, Nick 
Shehadie, Gordon Stone, Frank Surman, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker, Col Windon, Keith Windon 
 
Represented Australian Capital Territory [25] 

Matthew Carraro David J Knox 

Mark Chisholm Christian Lealiifano 

Rocky Elsom Shawn Mackay 

Frankie Fainifo Adam Magro 

Gene Fairbanks Ewen J McKenzie 

Owen D A Finegan Craig McMullen 

Scott Flint Ben Mowen 

Adam Freier Patrick Phibbs 

William Gordon Josh Valentine 

George Gregan Henry Vanderglas 

Stephen Hoiles Warwick W Waugh 

James Holbeck Brendan Williams 

 Timothy Wright 

Captains of ACT [5] 

Owen Finegan, George Gregan, Ewen McKenzie, Stephen Hoiles, Ben Mowen 

 

Represented Queensland [4] 

Dayna Edwards  

Shawn Mackay  

Morgan Turinui  

Warwick W Waugh 

Lukhan Tui 

 

Represented Victoria [2] 

Kurtley Beale 

Adam Freier  
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Represented Western Australia [7] 

Cruz Ah-Nau  

Phoenix Battye  

Nicholas Cummins  

Gene Fairbanks  

Matt Giteau  

Drew Mitchell  

Josh Valentine 

 

Represented in Australian Rugby Championship 2007 

Sydney Fleet [9] 

S Baker, D Edwards, A Halangahu, C Houston, D Kroll, A Little, J Price, 

M Turinui, M Whittleson 

  

Canberra Vikings [3] 

M Carraro, P Phibbs, T Wright 

  

Perth Storm [1] 

N Cummins 

 

Melbourne Rebels [1] 

S Mackay 

 

Represented in NRC 2015 

NSW Country Eagles – Jock Armstrong, Toa Asa, Mark Baldwin, Sam Croke, Sam Figg, Ned 

Hanigan, David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway, Dashville Kuate, Peter Nau, Jack Pennington, Brogan 

Roods and Mitch Short 

Rams 

Will Munro 
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Represented in NRC 2016  

NSW Country Eagles –  Mark Baldwin, Sam Croke, Sam Figg, Ned Hanigan, David Horwitz, 
Andrew Kellaway, Will Munro, Reece Robinson, Sonny Satuala, Mitch Short  
 
Rams 

Harrison Goddard, Andrew Tuala 

 

Represented Sydney Against National Teams [46] 

John E Berne 1 Omar Hassanein 2 Acura S Niuqila 1 

Shaun Berne 1 Phil Hawthorne 1 Alan Norley 1 

Gavin Boneham 1 Peter G Johnson 5 Gary K Pearse 4 

John E Brass 2 Adrian Jones 1 Stuart Pinkerton 1 

Brad T Burke 1 Eddie Jones 1 Simon P Poidevin 5 

Matthew P Burke 2 Peter Jorgensen 2 Terry Ryan 1 

Kenneth W Catchpole 2 Darren K Junee 2 Phillip V Smith 2 

John W Cole 5 Timothy P Kava 3 Rex Tapuai 1 

Gary A Ella 5 Phillip N Kearns 1 Lei Tomiki 1 

Glen J Ella 6 Timothy P Kelaher 2 Morgan P Turinui 1 

Mark G Ella 6 David J Knox 3 Lloyd J Walker 2 

Ray Evans 1 Arthur Little 1 Warwick W Waugh 3 

Russell L Fairfax 2 Bruce P Malouf 2 John M Weber 2 

Igo Fisher 1 Adrian McDonald 2 Jeffrey Williams 1 

John A Flett 2 Ewen J McKenzie 1 Kenneth J Wright 3 

    Duncan McRae 1     
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Season and Career Grade Games Played 

 

  

Pre  
2016 
Career 

Pre 
2016 
Career 2016 

 
 Career 

Last Name First Name First Club Club First Club 

Alofa Alofa     5 3 5 

Anderson Lachlan 0 0 18 15 18 

Andrews Nic 0 4 11 1 15 

Armstrong Jock 9 22 15 22 37 

Aropio Jioje 0 105 15 0 120 

Baldwin Mark 32 49 15 47 64 

Ball Andy 0 0 20 3 20 

Bazaez Esteban 0 0 3 0 3 

Benko Goran 0 8 4 0 12 

Boileau Harry 42 66 10 49 76 

Booth Tom 0 0 18 0 18 

Brodie Rhys 0 0 4 2 4 

Brown Doug 0 0 14 0 14 

Carr Reegan 0 0 7 0 7 

Carter Sam 0 0 2 0 2 

Casamento Stephen 0 166 1 0 167 

Catt Lewie 4 16 6 4 22 

Celona Michael 10 80 21 18 101 

Chapman Harry 0 0 1 1 1 

Chead Coletrain 0 0 3 0 3 

Chin Logan 0 0 8 0 8 

Cockinos Paris 1 25 16 1 41 

Connor Sam 0 0 19 1 19 

Considine Matt 0 0 14 0 14 

Coupland Tom 13 16 14 17 30 

Croke Sam 5 6 17 22 23 

Davis Conor 2 16 10 2 26 

Deegan Andrew 8 12 18 26 30 

Depledge Ollie 0 0 11 0 11 

Dumigan Ricky 10 70 1 0 71 

Early Andy 0 0 19 0 19 

Epa Iosefa Alex 2 28 7 2 35 

Ericka Junior 0 0 2 0 2 

Ferguson Drew 1 90 20 1 110 

Fifita Lisiati 0 0 15 0 15 
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Pre-
2016 
First 

Pre-
2016 
Club 

2016 
Club 

Career 
1st 

Career 
Club 

Freier Adam 87 119 15 100 134 

Frost Seamus 1 1 18 14 19 

Gerry - Burgess Sam 4 21 15 5 36 

Goddard Harrison 0 0 18 5 18 

Goodbody Tristan 42 71 15 57 86 

Green David 0 0 15 0 15 

Hanigan Ned 9 10 13 22 23 

Hardy Sean 0 40 5 0 45 

Harris Jesse 0 0 4 0 4 

Harrison Jack 0 0 1 0 1 

Harrison Sam 0 0 7 0 7 

Harrod Alex 8 27 6 8 33 

Hayson Jack 0 0 1 1 1 

Henderson Dan 0 3 2 0 5 

Helliwell Max 0 21 8 0 29 

Hiddleston Tom 5 55 15 5 70 

Hildebrand Greg 0 0 3 0 3 

Hoiles Stephen 84 104 9 92 113 

Hodgetts Patrick 29 130 11 29 141 

Horwitz David 37 38 4 41 42 

Houlihan Brad 0 0 13 0 13 

Howarth Josh 0 0 3 0 3 

Johnson Jack 19 30 20 26 50 

Johnston Toby 0 22 18 0 40 

Jowett Mitch 0 0 1 0 1 

Kaihau Alan 0 74 14 0 88 

Kamp Olly 1 1 0 1 1 

Kaspareck Nick 1 28 6 1 34 

Kellaway Andrew 16 18 5 21 23 

Kellaway Nick 2 5 16 18 21 

Kenneally Lachlan 0 0 19 0 19 

Kennedy Ed 7 12 19 12 31 

Kennewell Simon 0 0 2 2 2 

Kite Max 0 55 9 0 64 

Knight Kieran 0 2 7 0 9 

Koutsoukis Nick 0 1 20 0 21 

Kuate Dashville 12 12 6 14 18 

Kururangi Jason 0 0 10 0 10 

Lafolafo Will 0 0 19 1 19 

Latu Leon 0 0 3 0 3 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

119 
 

Last Name First Name 

Pre  
2016 
Career 

Pre 
2016 
Career 2016 Career Career 

  First Club Club First Club 

       

Latunipulu Sam 0 0 11 2 11 

Lemmon Larry 0 5 4 0 9 

Leslie Henry 0 6 15 1 21 

Lolo George 0 0 3 0 3 

Lolo Sam 2 99 10 2 109 

Luxford Tony 36 77 13 36 90 

Ma'afu Apakuki 13 13 15 22 28 

Makamaka Finaupauu 17 80 11 17 91 

Marks Greg 0 21 13 0 34 

Matakaiongo Saletili 0 0 8 0 8 

McGaughan Ozzie 0 0 12 0 12 

McGowan Rowan 0 13 1 0 14 

McKay Charlie 0 0 18 0 18 

McKay Lachlan 2 153 0 2 153 

Morkos Jeremiah 0 15 20 0 35 

Muller Sam 1 15 1 1 16 

Munro Will 44 50 16 60 66 

Murray Tim 0 37 14 0 51 

Musgrove Jack 0 0 15 0 15 

Nau Peter 8 13 18 22 31 

Nelson Jeremy  0 0 6 0 6 

O'Donahue Declan 0 0 11 0 11 

O'Shea Darren 14 221 1 14 222 

Parsons David 64 134 16 64 150 

Pennington Jack 6 17 12 15 29 

Peterson Alex 0 16 13 0 29 

Phibbs Patrick 116 134 9 125 143 

Powter Ryan 0 0 14 0 14 

Purcell James 0 0 16 4 16 

Rachimovas Arturas 0 20 11 0 31 

Randa Joe 0 0 12 0 12 

Ricci Valerio 0 0 22 0 22 

Robinson Ned 0 4 10 0 14 

Robinson Reece 0 0 4 4 4 

Roods Brogan 9 14 18 24 32 

Roughton Luke 0 0 14 0 14 

Rowntree Luke 0 20 20 0 40 

Ruprecht Brendon 0 28 5 0 33 
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Pre  
2016 
Career 

Pre 
2016 
Career 2016 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club Club First Club 

       

Satuala Sonny 0 0 14 14 14 

Serhon Matthew 0 0 1 0 1 

Shaw Mitchell 0 0 2 0 2 

Short Mitchell 14 16 8 21 24 

Smith Joe 0 0 1 0 1 

Smith Sosefo 0 48 2 0 50 

Starkey Ben 10 10 19 25 29 

Stirling Tom 0 10 8 0 18 

Stoltz Devan 2 4 3 2 7 

Szczudlo Joel 0 16 8 0 24 

Tackett Max 0 0 16 0 16 

Taie Lewis 1 36 16 1 52 

Taripo Chris 13 21 21 26 42 

Tovo Sione 2 14 1 2 15 

Tuala Andrew 0 0 14 10 14 

Vasilis Anthony 0 0 12 0 12 

Vea David 19 23 21 24 44 

Versci Charlie 0 0 5 0 5 

Wallace Tom 12 48 9 12 57 

Weatherall Henry (Tom) 10 77 3 10 80 

Weber Tom 2 112 18 2 130 

Wong Tom 0 0 11 0 11 

Wright Peter 2 229 3 2 232 

        

 

Jeffrey Sayle and Ian Holder 
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2016 Season and Career Colts Games Played by Individual Players 

 

  

2015 2015 2016 Career Career 

Last Name First Name Club First Club First Club 

Adamson Hugh 13 0 7 0 20 

Adoni - Suata Lorima 0 0 1 0 1 

Allen Lewis 0 0 13 0 13 

Anderson Louis 0 0 15 0 15 

Anderson William 0 0 9 4 9 

Ben - Sims William 0 0 4 0 4 

Beynon Guy 0 0 15 0 15 

Boardman Dan 0 0 21 3 21 

Bonin Kieran 14 0 26 11 40 

Brancadoro Federico 0 0 1 0 1 

Campbell Josh. 0 0 8 0 8 

Carr Reegan 0 0 7 7 7 

Carr Zac 0 0 1 0 1 

Chapman Harry 0 0 10 10 10 

Chipizubov Dimitri 0 0 1 0 1 

Cooper Justin 0 0 18 18 18 

Corcoran Alec 11 0 21 5 32 

Degoumis Henry 0 0 3 0 3 

Dolan Conor 0 0 8 8 8 

Donaldson Ben 0 0 1 0 1 

Eden Solomon 0 0 6 0 6 

Edwards Ben 0 0 1 0 1 

Faleafago Alex 0 0 5 0 5 

Fekitoa Manisela 6 0 11 0 17 

Fifita Vunipola 0 0 4 4 4 

Finch William 0 0 13 1 13 

Freeman Bill 0 0 16 16 16 

Gibson Fui 0 0 7 0 7 

Gibson Steve 0 0 19 2 19 

Gittoes Nathaniel 0 0 13 13 13 

Goode Jack 0 0 4 0 4 

Gordon Hamish 20 0 19 13 39 

Ha'angana Esei 0 0 15 4 15 

Haley Josh 0 0 2 0 2 
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2015 2015 2016 Career Career 

Last Name First Name Club First Club First Club 

Hayson Jack 0 0 17 16 17 

Hilder Bailey 0 0 12 2 12 

Horwitz Sam 19 7 17 13 36 

Hunt Sam 17 0 16 0 33 

Iremia Jordan 11 0 9 4 20 

James Lathan 0 0 1 0 1 

Kendall Eddie 0 0 0 0 0 

Kenny  Ryan 0 0 10 1 10 

Lancaster Ethan 0 0 1 0 1 

Lancaster Jacob 0 0 4 0 4 

Latinipulu Latu 19 17 3 20 22 

Loga - Tarogi Sepesa 0 0 14 14 14 

Longhi Louis 0 0 6 0 6 

Maama Paula 0 0 0 0 0 

MacIntosh Reece 1 1 7 1 8 

Marks Ben 14 0 8 0 22 

Matenga Sam 16 0 9 5 25 

McCulloch Connor 0 0 2 0 2 

McGuiggan Ethan 0 0 13 0 13 

Midson Michael 0 0 20 1 20 

Molloy Tom 0 0 7 7 7 

Musgrove Sam 0 0 18 6 18 

Naleeba Tyrell 0 0 18 0 18 

Narayan Dion 0 0 21 0 21 

Nikau Sione 0 0 5 0 5 

Noonan Josh. 4 0 22 8 26 

Nowlan Thomas 0 0 14 0 14 

Pahuru Morehu 0 0 14 0 14 

Park Kyle 0 0 21 0 21 

Pelligrini Aidan 5 0 4 0 9 

Pelligrini Patrick 9 0 22 10 31 

Piroddi Tom 1 0 13 13 14 

Poidevin Christian 0 0 1 0 1 

Poidevin Jean - Luc 0 0 10 0 10 

Pritchard Jack 0 0 0 0 0 

Quinn Callum 0 0 2 0 2 

Ramm James 0 0 21 13 21 
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  2015 2015 2016 Career Career 

Last Name First Name Club First Club First Club 

Reader Josh 0 0 8 0 8 

Robbins Eliot 6 0 20 4 26 

Rumble Patrick 0 0 17 15 17 

Serhon Matt 18 4 22 7 40 

Simpson Angus 0 0 18 4 18 

Simpson Lachlan 0 0 17 13 17 

Solomon Dimitri 0 0 1 0 1 

Stein Harrison 0 0 6 0 6 

Streater - Mason Ronald 0 0 15 5 15 

Svanfelds Greg 0 0 16 0 16 

Tali Epalahame 12 10 22 29 34 

Tangiora Bayley 0 0 5 0 5 

Tangitau Tonga 0 0 19 16 19 

Taumopeau Lemeke 9 2 14 4 23 

Thomas Sione 0 0 0 0 0 

Tifa D J 8 0 22 3 30 

Tila Tupuo 0 0 15 0 15 

Tinker James 0 0 13 0 13 

Trinkler Zach 0 0 15 2 15 

Tregurtha James 0 0 15 0 15 

Vasilis Joseph 0 0 11 0 11 

Whitelock Joseph 0 0 27 3 27 

Williams Rory 0 0 17 4 17 

Wong Tom 17 7 4 10 21 

Woodhill Jum 15 14 17 21 32 

Zanoli James 0 0 4 0 4 

       

 

Colts water boys 
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2016 Career and Season Points Scored by Individual Grade Players 

 

  
2016 Season Totals 2015  Career Totals 2016 Career Totals 

  
        

        Last Name First Name T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Alofa Alofa 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Anderson Lachlan 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Andrews Nic 5 5 0 35 0 15 0 30 5 20 0 65 

Armstrong Jock 2 0 0 10 1 0 0 5 3 0 0 15 

Aropio Jioje 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 

Baldwin Mark 3 0 0 15 13 0 0 65 16 0 0 80 

Ball Andy 4 11 0 42 0 0 0 0 4 11 0 42 

Benko Goran 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Boileau Harry 3 0 0 15 3 9 1 36 6 9 1 51 

Booth Tom 2 14 2 44 0 0 0 0 2 14 2 44 

Brown Doug 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Bazaez Esteban 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Carr Reegan 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Catt Lewie 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 4 0 0 20 

Celona Michael 1 0 0 5 3 0 0 15 4 0 0 20 

Cockinos Paris 4 0 0 20 3 0 0 15 7 0 0 35 

Connor Sam 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

Considine Matt 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Coupland Tom 5 2 0 29 2 7 0 24 7 9 0 53 
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Last Name First Name T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Croke Sam 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Davis Conor 1 7 3 28 4 25 8 94 5 32 11 122 

Deegan Andrew 7 53 23 210 1 14 4 45 8 67 27 255 

Depledge Ollie 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Early Andy 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Ferguson Drew 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Fifita Lisi 2 1 0 12 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 12 

Frost Seamus 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Gerry - Burgess Sam 3 0 0 15 9 0 0 45 12 0 0 60 

Goddard Harrison 5 20 2 71 0 0 0 0 5 20 2 71 

Goodbody Tristan 1 0 0 5 15 0 0 75 16 0 0 80 

Green David 6 2 0 34 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 34 

Hanigan Ned 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Hardy Sean 0 2 0 4 6 38 5 121 6 40 5 125 

Harris Jesse 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Harrison Sam 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Harrod Alex 1 0 0 5 3 0 0 15 4 0 0 20 

Helliwell Max 1 0 0 5 0 1 0 2 1 1 0 7 

Hiddleston Tom 2 34 13 117 27 100 42 461 29 134 55 578 

Hildebrand Greg 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Hodgetts Patrick 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 115 23 0 0 115 

Hoiles Stephen 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Horwitz David 0 1 0 2 7 36 10 137 7 37 10 139 

Houlihan Brad 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 
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Last Name First Name T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Howarth Josh 1 0 0 5       0 1 0 0 5 

Johnson Jack 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 5 0 0 25 

Johnston Toby 4 0 0 20 9 1 0 47 13 1 0 67 

Kaihau Al 2 0 0 10 17 0 0 85 19 0 0 95 

Kamp Olly 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Kasperak Nick 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Kellaway Nick 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 

Kellaway Andrew 2 0 0 10 10 0 0 50 12 0 0 60 

Kenneally Lachlan 6 15 0 60 0 0 0 0 6 15 0 60 

Kennedy Ed 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Kite Maximillian 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Knight Kieran 1 2 2 15 1 0 0 5 2 2 2 20 

Koutsoukis Nick 4 0 0 20 1 0 0 5 5 0 0 25 

Kurangi Jason 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Lafolafo Will 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Latu Leon 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Latunipulu Sam 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Lemmon Larry 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Leslie Henry 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Luxford Tony 2 0 0 10 23 0 0 115 25 0 0 125 

Lolo George 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Lolo Sam 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Ma'afu Apakuki 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 4 0 0 20 

Marks Greg 5 0 0 25 9 0 0 45 14 0 0 70 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

127 
 

              

Last Name First Name 2016    2015    Career    

  T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Matakaiongo Saletili 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

McGaughan Ozzy 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

McKay Charlie 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 

Morkos Jeremiah 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Muller Sam 0 0 0 0 4 8 1 39 4 8 1 39 

Munro Will 3 0 0 15 2 0 0 10 5 0 0 25 

Murray Tim 0 0 0 0 5 2 2 35 5 2 2 35 

Musgrove Jack 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Nau Peter 5 0 0 25 1 0 0 5 6 0 0 30 

Nelson Jeremy 2 0 0 10       0 2 0 0 10 

O'Donahue Declan 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Parsons David 3 0 0 15 24 0 0 120 27 0 0 135 

Pennington Jack 5 0 0 25 16 0 0 80 21 0 0 105 

Peterson Alex 1 0 0 5 4 4 0 28 5 4 0 33 

Powter Ryan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Purcell James 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rachimovas Arturas 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Randa Joe 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Ricci Valerio 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Robinson Ned 1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 

Robinson Reece 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Roods Brogan 4 0 0 20 1 0 0 5 5 0 0 25 

Roughton Luke 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 
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  2016    2015    Career    

Last Name First Name T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Rowntree Luke 3 0 1 18 5 3 1 34 8 3 2 52 

Ricci Valerio 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Satuala Sonny 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Short Mitchell 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Starkey Ben 2 0 0 10 1 0 0 5 3 0 0 15 

Stirling Tom 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Stoltz Devan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Szczudlo Joel 1 0 2 11 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 11 

Tackett Max 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Taie Lewis 4 0 0 20 3 0 0 15 7 0 0 35 

Taripo Chris 9 14 6 91 10 9 9 95 19 23 15 186 

Tuala Andrew 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Vasilis Anthony 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Vea David 3 0 0 15 2 0 0 10 5 0 0 25 

Wallace Tom 3 0 0 15 7 0 0 35 10 0 0 50 

Weatherall Henry (Tom) 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Weber Tom 3 0 0 15 23 0 0 115 26 0 0 130 

Wong Tom 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

     Penalty Try 1 0 0 5       0 1 0 0 5 

  
265 183 54 1853 312 272 83 2353 576 455 137 4201 
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2016 Cumulative Points Scored by Individual Colts Players 

              
              Last Name First Name 2016 Season Totals 2015 Totals Career Totals 

    T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Adamson Hugh 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Allen Lewis 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Anderson Louis 2 1 1 15 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 15 

Anderson William 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Ben - Sims Will 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Boardman Dan 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

Bonin Kieran 9 0 0 45 7 0 0 35 16 0 0 80 

Brancadoro Federico 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Carr Regan 3 12 1 42 0 0 0 0 3 12 1 42 

Chapman Harry 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Cooper Justin 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Corcoran Alec 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30 12 0 0 60 

Degoumis Henry 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Dolan Conor 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Eden Soloman 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Edwards Ben 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Faleafago Alex 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Fekitoa Manisela 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Fifita Vunipola 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Finch William 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Freeman Bill 9 18 1 84 0 0 0 0 9 18 1 84 
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Last Name First Name 2016 Season Totals  2015 Totals    Career Totals  

  T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

Gibson Fui 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Gibson Steve 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

Gittoes Nathaniel 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Goode Jack 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Gordon Hamish 3 1 0 17 13 1 0 67 16 2 0 84 

Ha'angana Esei 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Harrison Jack  10 11 0 72 1 0 0 5 11 11 0 77 

Harrison Will 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Hayson Jack 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 

Hilder Bailey 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 

Horwitz Sam 6 1 0 32 10 62 2 180 16 63 2 212 

Hunt Sam 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Iremia Jordan 1 0 0 5 5 0 0 25 6 0 0 30 

Kendall Eddie 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Kenny Ryan 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Lancaster Ethan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Latinipulu Latu 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Loga - Tarogi Sepesa 10 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 50 

MacIntosh Reece 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Marks Ben 2 0 0 10 5 0 0 25 7 0 0 35 

Matenga Sam 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

McCulloch Connor 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 
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T G 
P/FG TOT 

T G 
P/FG TOT 

T G 
P/FG TOT 

McGuiggan Ethan 4 24 0 68 0 0 0 0 4 24 0 68 

Midson Michael 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Molloy Tom 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Musgrove Sam 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Naleeba Tyrell 7 2 0 39 0 0 0 0 7 2 0 39 

Narayan Dion 6 28 1 89 0 0 0 0 6 28 1 89 

Noonan Josh 9 1 0 47 0 0 0 0 9 1 0 47 

Nowlan Thomas 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Pahuru Morehu 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Park Kyle 2 2 0 14 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 14 

Pelligrini Aidan 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 11 1 3 0 11 

Pelligrini Patrick 7 43 0 121 4 1 0 22 11 44 0 143 

Pirrodi Tom 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Poidevin Christian 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Pritchard Jack 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Ramm James 15 5 0 85 0 0 0 0 15 5 0 85 

Reader Joshua 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Robbins Eliot 6 3 0 36 3 0 0 15 9 3 0 51 

Rumble Patrick 7 3 0 41 0 0 0 0 7 3 0 41 

Serhon Matt 5 0 0 25 4 0 0 20 9 0 0 45 

Simpson Angus 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

Stein Harrison 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Streater - Mason Ronald 6 0 0 30 15 0 0 75 21 0 0 105 

Svanfelds Greg 7 3 0 41 0 0 0 0 7 3 0 41 

Tali Epalahame 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40 16 0 0 80 

Tangitau Tonga 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Taumopeau Lemeke 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2016   

132 
 

              

              

Last Name First Name 2016 Season Totals  2015 Totals    Career Totals  

Thomas Sione 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Tifa D J 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Tila Tupou 2 3 0 16 0 0 0 0 2 3 0 16 

Tinker James 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 

Tregurtha James 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Trinkler Zach 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Vasilis Joseph 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Whitelock Joseph 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 

Williams Rory 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Wong Tom 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Woodhill Jum  5 0 0 25 2 0 0 10 7 0 0 35 

Zanoli James 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

 Penalty Try   1 0 0 5       0 1 0 0 5 

  
273 162 4 439 94 67 2 163 368 229 6 602 

              

              

 

Drew Kellaway selected on the Wallabies Spring Tour as a development player 
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Gregory Phibbs, 

Patrick and 

Kevin Phibbs 

Dr Paul Raftos 

attending to a 

player 

David Campese 

and James 

Holbeck 

David Horwitz 

“McNamara’s 

Band” 
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The 1959 Premiers Forwards 

L to R  

Ted Heinrich, Stan Sparrow, Bruce Judd, Peter Johnson, Dick Thornett, Bill Outterside, 

Terry Reid [Bob Outterside’s socks on show!]  

 

 

Peter Nau, Shannon Fraser and Mick Stephen with the Sir Roden Cutler Shield 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc 

Member Information Form 

Membership Classifications 

Honorary Life Member   (   ) Qualification as per By-law 6 

Playing Member   (   ) Must be a current player 

Ordinary Member   (   ) Past player, Councillor, other official or volunteer 

Associate Member   (   ) Former player or official (any club); supporter of rugby 

Tick in the parentheses beside each classification for which you are a Member 

          Personal Details 

 
          First name_______________Middle name(s)__________________Surname_____________________ 

 
          Member Years__________DOB________________Occupation________________________________ 

 
Address____________________________________________State__________Postcode___________ 

Phone (H)________________Phone (M)__________________ Phone (W)________________________ 

Email_______________________________________________________________________________ 

For all of the following information, please supply years 

Rugby Awards (Club B&F, Wally Meagher Trophy, Life Member NSWRU, …) __________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Playing Record 

Juniors______________________________________________________________________________ 

School_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Colts________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Grade_______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Representative (schools, NSW, Australia,….)________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other ________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
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         Coaching/Managing Record 

Juniors_______________________________________________________________________________ 

School(s)_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Colts________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Grade(s)_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Representative (schools, NSW, Australia,….)________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Administration 

Randwick_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other (NSW, Australia,…)_______________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other Categories (Randwick & Elsewhere: promotion, sponsorship, mentor, …) ___________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Signature___________________________Name__________________________Date________________ 

          
         The information you have supplied will be added to the Member Database of the Randwick DRUFC. The       
          Database will be updated regularly. Completed forms are to be returned to the Club Secretary. 

 
 

 

Office Use Only 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
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